Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission
1703 Gloucester Street, Brunswick GA 31520
Thursday, May 16, 2019 at 2:00 pm
Commission Meeting Room

COMMISSION MEETING AGENDA
Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge

PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
Public Comments will be limited to 3 minutes per speaker. Comments are to be limited to relevant information regarding your position and
should avoid being repetitious. Individuals should sign in stating your name, address and the subject matter on which you wish to speak.
Your cooperation in this process will be greatly appreciated.

EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION
Retirement Presentation – C. Harvey / C. Barnhart, T.S.I. / T. Kline
Richard Gary - Retirement
COMMITTEE UPDATES
Facilities Committee – Chairman Turnipseed
Finance Committee – Commissioner Copeland
Communications Committee – Commissioner Stephens
Human Resources Committee – Commissioner Elliott
Legislative Committee – Commissioner Harvey
Economic Development Committee – Commissioner Duncan
Emergency Preparedness Committee – Commissioner Stephens
APPROVAL
1.
Minutes from May 2, 2019 Regular Meeting (subject to any necessary changes)
2.
Minutes from May 2, 2019 Executive Session (subject to any necessary changes)
3.
Minutes from May 8, 2019 Special Called Meeting (subject to any necessary changes)
4.
Academy Creek Engineering RFP Recommendation Award – A. Burroughs
5.
Harrington Lane Sewer Dedication Acceptance – T. Kline
6.
Appointment of Auditor – J. Donaghy
7.
Banking Resolutions Signature Cards – J. Donaghy
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S UPDATE
CHAIRMAN’S UPDATE
EXECUTIVE SESSION
MEETING ADJOURNED
All citizens are invited to attend.
There is a possibility of a quorum of City or County Commissioners being present.

Brunswick-Glynn County
Joint Water and Sewer Commission

Acceptance as Public Infrastructure
To:

Brunswick-Glynn Joint Water & Sewer Commission – Board

From:

Todd Kline, P.E. (Planning & Construction, Senior Engineer)

Date:

May 16, 2019

Re:

Acceptance as Public Infrastructure

Background
The Owner of Record has submitted an Application for Dedication of Water/Wastewater Systems for the following
project(s):
1. Harrington Lane Sewer Extension: Developed by Tommy Stewart, sewer was extended from 143 Harrington
Lane to 151 Harrington Lane on St. Simons Island.
Staff Report
In providing required documentation, the Owner of record recognizes and accepts responsibility for correcting any
and all system defects that may occur or be found during the operation of the system for a period of two (2) years
from the date of acceptance.
The water and sewer systems have been constructed in accordance with applicable standards and in accordance
with the JWSC Development Procedures; the work has been deemed compliant by JWSC operational
superintendents and the project inspector; and, Record Drawings have fully executed.
The Dedication for Application was presented to the Commission Facilities Committee on Wednesday, May 15,
2019 for consideration.

Project
Harrington
Lane Sewer
Extension

Letter of
Intent

NA

Record
Drawings

04-16-2019

Application for
Dedication
Water
Wastewater
NA

1

X

Fair Value of Infrastructure
Water

Wastewater

NA

123 Linear Feet
$11,180

Easement1

NA

Where applicable, easement documents along with the required plats and legal descriptions have been
prepared, executed, submitted and approved as to form by the BGJWSC Attorney.

Harrington Lane Sewer Ded Acceptance_BOC Memo 05-09-2019

Recommended Action
In as much as all requirements of the BGJWSC Development Procedures have been met, all related documents have
been submitted and executed, and the Commission Facilities Committee recommended acceptance, staff
recommends acceptance by the Commission of the Harrington Lane Sewer Extension as public infrastructure for
ownership, operation and maintenance.
Recommended Motion
I make a motion that the Brunswick Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission accept the Harrington Lane
Sewer Extension as public infrastructure for ownership, operation and maintenance.

Attachments
1) Application for Dedication – Requires BGJWSC Commission Signature
2) Record Drawing for Reference

Harrington Lane Sewer Ded Acceptance_BOC Memo 05-09-2019

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)
TO PROVIDE
FINANCIAL AUDITING
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES TO:

Brunswick‐Glynn County
Joint Water & Sewer
Commission
Fiscal Years June 30, 2018
through 2020
Miller Edwards, CPA, Partner
300 Mulberry Street, Suite 300
Macon, Georgia 31201
medwards@mjcpa.com
Phone: 800‐277‐0050

May 1, 2018 | 12:00 PM

Over 400 Governmental Units Served

We Do Things Right &
We Do the Right Things

Brunswick‐Glynn County
Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Proposal to Serve
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Transmittal Letter
May 1, 2018
Ms. Pamela Drury‐Crosby
Director of Procurement
Brunswick‐Glynn County Water and Sewer Commission
1703 Gloucester Street
Brunswick, Georgia 31520
Ladies and Gentlemen:
We appreciate the opportunity to propose on continuing to provide audit services to the Brunswick‐Glynn
County Joint Water & Sewer Commission (the “Commission”), and we are pleased to submit a qualifications
package including cost estimates to provide annual financial and compliance auditing services for the
Commission. It is our understanding that the Commission is requesting proposals from qualified firms of
certified public accountants to establish a contract for the professional services of a Certified Public
Accountant (the “auditor”) for financial and compliance audits. The contract for such audit services will be
for three (3) consecutive fiscal years beginning with the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018 and ending with
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020.
We have read the Request for Proposal (RFP) and fully understand its intent and contents. We understand
the time frame for performance of the annual financial audits as stipulated by the Commission, and agree
to provide the services described in the proposal. We will conduct preliminary and final fieldwork and will
issue all of the deliverables and reports substantially prior to the required due dates.
As professionals serving the public sector, Mauldin & Jenkins is qualified to serve the Commission. We
believe that Mauldin & Jenkins is the leader in auditing state and local governments in the southeast.
This leadership was achieved by recognizing that we are an important part of our client's success, with our
objective being to ensure that accurate information is reported to the Board, management, and its citizens.
Given the complexities of the Commission’s financial operations and the ongoing significant changes in
accounting standards, we feel that it is extremely important that you select an accounting firm that is
focused and extremely experienced in the governmental industry. We differentiate ourselves from our
peers in the following ways:
 Experience with Governments and Water Systems. We believe that the knowledge and experience of

Mauldin & Jenkins in serving state and local governments in the southeast and the strong working
relationship we maintain with our clients cannot be matched by any other firm. Mauldin & Jenkins
presently provides over 85,000 hours of service to approximately 400 governmental units in the
Southeast on an annual basis. Such experience results in the utilization of over 90 full‐time
equivalent professionals. In addition, we currently audit over 100 water & sewer systems.
Consequently, our Mauldin & Jenkins professionals are thoroughly versed in the Commission’s unique
and complex functions, and we consistently provide the highest quality of service to our clients. Of
those 300 governments served, 105 obtain the GFOA’s Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in
Financial Reporting.
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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 Experience with Client Transitions. Over the past 20 years, we have experienced approximately 400

transitions as the new auditors of governmental entities. Our team offers a great deal of experience
with serving new clients, and providing a smooth transition during the change in auditors.
 Staff Continuity. Our staff retention rates are considered to be among the best in the profession (and

much better than national and other regional firms). This fact, coupled with our vast array of
government clients, results in a staff pool highly experienced with governmental entities with the
definite capacity to serve the Commission. We are able to not only provide consistency with the
partner and manager on our engagement teams, but seniors as well. We also have enough resources
at the partner, manager, and senior levels to provide for periodic rotations as requested by our clients.
 Education. Mauldin & Jenkins’ clients have the opportunity to register and receive approximately

thirty (30) hours of continuing education on an annual basis, free of charge. We take our experience
in serving governments, and choose timely and relevant topics to provide ongoing education to our
clients. Sessions are limited to clients only.
 Responsiveness. We pride ourselves in responding to the needs of our clients and meeting their

deadlines. This responsiveness is not only the ability to meet specified audit deadlines, but also the
ability to respond to other requests. Our ability to be responsive is enhanced by the open
communications and good working relationship we have with our clients. Our resources provide for
the flexibility to meet your needs and to perform our services in an efficient and effective manner.
 Organized to Specifically Meet Your Needs.

Our partners, managers, and seniors in the Firm’s
Governmental Practice Division spend 100% of their time serving governments. By structuring the
Firm’s Governmental Practice Division in such a manner, we are able to create efficiencies in the audit
process which typically result in our total hours being significantly less than most other firms.

 Nationally Recognized. Mauldin & Jenkins is consistently ranked in the Top 100 by Accounting Today

as well as Inside Public Accounting trade associations and magazines as one (1) of the largest certified
public accounting firms in the country. Tommye Barie (a governmental audit partner with Mauldin &
Jenkins) served as the 2015 Chair of the Board of Directors of the AICPA.
This proposal represents a firm offer for 60 days from the date of the proposal. As a member of Mauldin &
Jenkins, Miller Edwards is authorized to bind, and make representations for the Firm, and he will be the
ultimate party responsible for the quality of the report and working papers. We welcome the opportunity
to meet with management and governing board officials to present our proposal and our qualifications.
Please contact us at (800) 277‐0050, 300 Mulberry Street, Suite 300, Macon, GA 31201. Again, on behalf of
Mauldin & Jenkins, thank you for the opportunity to serve.
Sincerely,
MAULDIN & JENKINS, LLC

Miller G. Edwards, Partner

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Rotating or Not Rotating Audit Firms
There are proponents in the governmental sector that believe in changing auditors periodically. The
belief is that changing auditors improves audit quality of an audit by providing a “fresh look”.
Recognizing this proposal is a rebid of financial and compliance audit services currently provided by
Mauldin & Jenkins to the Commission, and the possibility that governing board members and evaluation
team members may believe it to be prudent to rotate auditors on a periodic basis, we would like to offer
the following actual headline and article which was posted on the AICPA’s Center for Audit Quality
website in July of 2015:

Accounting Today reports that a new academic paper calls mandatory audit firm
rotation into question. Based on a complex experiment involving students who did not
even know they were playing the role of auditors, the study concludes that mandatory
rotation could inhibit professional skepticism rather than encourage skepticism.
“Professional skepticism requirements are intended to elevate auditors' skepticism of
their clients and, ultimately, audit quality,” the study says. “This benefit disappears
and even reverses when auditors rotate. That is, rotation and a skeptical mindset
interact to the detriment of audit effort and financial reporting quality.”
The study argues that auditors who are subject every few years to mandatory rotation
feel less confident about their ability to audit a new client. "Rotating auditors, aware
that they will not be in a long‐term relationship, will...likely perceive themselves to be
less competent in evaluating the honesty or dishonesty of the [corporate] manager
relative to auditors who do not rotate." As a result, "rotating auditors would find it
difficult to garner psychological support for the probability of manager dishonesty,
leading them to be less likely to choose high levels of audit effort than non‐rotating
auditors."
The above conceptual thoughts as researched and issued by Accounting Today and the AICPA Audit
Quality Center are considered to be relevant to all certified public accounting firms. We tend to agree
with the thoughts communicated herein by the AICPA’s Center for Audit Quality. That being said, if you
feel differently from the conceptual thoughts communicated above, and that a rotation of auditors is
necessary, it is important to note that Mauldin & Jenkins has substantial people resources, and can
accommodate a change in: 1) lead partner, 2) quality assurance partner, 3) audit staff, and 4) office,
should the Commission believe such changes are necessary.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Firm and Staff Profile
Overview
Mauldin & Jenkins was formed in 1918 and has been actively engaged in governmental auditing since its
inception. Mauldin & Jenkins is considered to be one of Georgia’s largest locally owned provider of
audit and accounting services, and one of the largest certified public accounting firms in the country.
Mauldin & Jenkins serves clients throughout the Southeastern United States. Mauldin & Jenkins is
considered to be a large regional firm. We have offices in the following communities:

Macon, GA ** Albany, GA ** Atlanta, GA ** Columbia, SC
Birmingham, AL ** Bradenton, FL ** Chattanooga, TN
As noted in our transmittal letter, Mauldin & Jenkins provides over 85,000 hours of service to
governmental entities on an annual basis. The Firm’s governmental practice is the largest niche in the
Firm representing approximately 25% of the Firm’s total practice. However, size and resources alone
are not the most meaningful measure of success; in the end, our clients remain the best judges of
Mauldin & Jenkins' value.
Other key information relative to the size and experience of Mauldin & Jenkins is as follows:













300,000 ‐ approx. total hours of service provided annually to clients of the Firm
85,000 ‐ approx. total hours of service provided annually to governmental clients of the Firm
40% ‐ percentage of governmental practice as compared to Firm’s attestation practice
25% ‐ percentage of governmental practice as compared to Firm’s overall practice
400 ‐ approx. total governmental entities served in past three (3) years
280 ‐ total number of Firm personnel
105 ‐ total clients served who obtain the GFOA / ASBO Certificates
44 ‐ total clients with publicly issued debts in excess of $50 million
52 ‐ total number of Firm partners
11 ‐ total number of full‐time governmental partners & directors
11 ‐ total number of full‐time governmental managers
90 ‐ total number of professionals with current governmental experience

A Century of Service
Mauldin & Jenkins’ commitment to government began when our Firm was established in 1918. Since
then, we have viewed service to governments as significant to the overall success of the Firm. Today,
the governmental sector is an industry that has been specifically identified for our continued growth in
professional services. Accordingly, all professionals, from entry‐level accountants to partners (who
select the governmental sector as their focus) are trained to understand the issues and meet the needs
of state and local governmental entities.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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As noted previously, Mauldin & Jenkins employs 22 partners,
directors and managers who dedicate 100% of their time
serving government clients. We also have numerous
additional professionals with current experience in providing
services to governmental entities – many of whom spend
their time exclusively on government clients. Mauldin &
Jenkins’ dedicated professionals can bring a comprehensive
understanding of the issues that face government entities as
well as “bench strength” at all levels, allowing us to respond
swiftly and effectively to your evolving needs.
The goal of our government practice is to help governments improve their financial processes and
strategies so that they can in turn achieve their goal of improving the lives of their citizens. This shared
commitment to the goals of our clients has resulted in a significant government clientele. As noted in
our transmittal letter, we currently serve approximately 400 governments in the Southeast. We know
of no other firm that can match our experience.
Our current footprint of clients extends as far north as Bristol, Tennessee (located on the border
between Tennessee and Virginia) and as far south as Islamorada, Florida (located within the south
Florida Keys) with many clients in between. Looking east to west we serve Charleston, South Carolina
and Selma, North Carolina to clients in Birmingham, Alabama.

Location of the Office from which the Work is to be Performed
The Macon office will act as the lead in providing services to the Commission, with additional staff roles
coming from our other offices as needed. The Macon office acts as the Firm’s lead office on all
governmental engagements across the Southeast. We have a working relationship between offices that
we utilize quite often in serving the governmental sector, and it works quite well for all of our clients.
The individuals mentioned in this proposal, Mr. Miller Edwards, Ms. Meredith Lipson, and Mr. Grant
Davis, are known across the Southeast for their involvement with governmental entities. They have
significant experience in governmental audit and accounting, and will play significant roles in providing
ongoing services to the Commission.
The Macon office currently employs 24 professionals with current experience in providing services to
governmental entities and who will meet the continuing professional education requirements set forth
in the U.S. General Accounting Office Government Auditing Standards. A further profile of the Macon
office and the Firm’s professional staff as a whole is as follows:

Professional Staff by Level

Macon

Firm‐Wide

Partners

7

45

Managers

8

40

Supervisors / Senior

13

75

Other Staff & Consultants

14

120

Total

42

280

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Experience
Perhaps the greatest indicator of our reliability as a professional service provider to state and local
governments is our list of governmental clients.
Cities. Cities we have audited or are in the process of serving within the past three (3) years are:
Georgia
1) Albany
2) Alpharetta
3) Americus
4) Austell
5) Baldwin
6) Ball Ground
7) Blakely
8) Braselton
9) Brookhaven
10) Brunswick
11) Cedartown
12) Chamblee
13) Chattahoochee Hills
14) Clarkston
15) Cochran
16) College Park
17) Conyers
18) Cordele
19) Covington
20) Decatur
21) Doraville
22) Douglasville
23) Duluth
24) Dunwoody
25) Fairburn

26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)
43)
44)
45)
46)
47)
48)
49)
50)
51)

Fayetteville
Forest Park
Grantville
Griffin
Hapeville
Hinesville
Jefferson
Johns Creek
Kennesaw
Kingsland
Lawrenceville
Leesburg
Lilburn
Milledgeville
Milton
Monroe
Morrow
Peachtree City
Peachtree Corners
Perry
Powder Springs
Quitman
Riverdale
Rockmart
Rome
Roswell

52)
53)
54)
55)
56)
57)
58)
59)
60)
61)
62)
63)

Sandy Springs
Sharpsburg
Social Circle
Stockbridge
Suwanee
Tifton
Toccoa
Tucker
Tybee Island
Union City
Valdosta
Villa Rica

Florida
64) Arcadia
65) Bradenton
66) Cooper City
67) Crystal River
68) Ft. Myers Beach
69) Haines City
70) Hallandale Beach
71) Islamorada
72) Lake Placid
73) Long Boat Key
74) Marco Island
75) Naples

76)
77)
78)
79)

North Port
Pensacola
Pinecrest
Plant City

Alabama
80) Tuscaloosa
North Carolina
81) New Bern
82) Selma
South Carolina
83) Aiken
84) Beaufort
85) Charleston
86) Clover
87) Goose Creek
88) Loris
89) Orangeburg
90) Summerville
Tennessee
91) Bristol
92) Crossville
93) Jamestown

Counties. Counties we have audited or are in the process of serving within the past three (3) years are:
Georgia
1) Athens‐Clarke
2) Augusta‐Richmond
3) Bacon
4) Barrow
5) Cherokee
6) Clayton
7) Colquitt
8) Columbia
9) Crisp
10) DeKalb
11) Dougherty
12) Douglas

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)

Forsyth
Gwinnett
Henry
Jackson
Jeff Davis
Jones
Lincoln
Lumpkin
Macon
Macon‐Bibb
McIntosh
Mitchell
Monroe

28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)

Paulding
Peach
Rockdale
Spalding
Stephens
Taylor
Toombs
Union
Walton

Tennessee
37) Hamilton

South Carolina
38) Beaufort
39) Colleton
40) Darlington
41) Edgefield
42) Lancaster
43) Laurens
44) Oconee
North Carolina
45) Orange
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Water & Sewer, Other Enterprise and Municipal Electric Authority of Georgia (MEAG) Operations.
Below is a listing of various enterprise operations we have served within the past three (3) years are:
Georgia
1) Albany
2) Americus
3) Athens‐Clarke Co.
4) Augusta‐Richmond Co.
5) Ball Ground
6) Brunswick
7) Canton
8) Cochran
9) College Park
10) Columbia Co.
11) Conyers
12) Cordele
13) Covington
14) Crisp Co.
15) DeKalb Co.
16) Fairburn
17) Floyd Co.
18) Fayetteville
19) Forsyth Co.
20) Grantville

21)
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)

Griffin
Hinesville
Jefferson
Kingsland
Lawrenceville
Leesburg
Lincoln Co.
McIntosh Co.
Milledgeville
Mitchell Co.
Monroe
Monroe Co.
Paulding Co.
Perry
Powder Springs
Quitman
Rockdale Co.
Rockmart
Rome
Roswell
Spalding Co.

Stand‐Alone Audited W&S Operations
74) Augusta Utilities (Water/Sewer Ops)
75) Barrow County Water & Sewer Authority
76) Bristol Joint Sewer System
77) Brunswick ‐ Glynn Joint Water & Sewer Comm.
78) Catawba River Water Supply Project
80) Charleston Water System
81) Chatsworth Water Works Commission
82) Clayton County Water & Sewer Authority
83) Cobb County ‐ Marietta Water Authority
84) Eatonton‐Putnam Water & Sewer Authority
85) Edgefield County Water & Sewer Authority
86) Georgetown County Water & Sewer District
87) Greenwood Commissioners of Public Works (WEG)
88) Gwinnett County Water and Sewerage Authority
89) Hamilton Co. Water & Wastewater Treatment Auth.
90) Henry County Water Authority
91) Lumpkin County Water & Sewerage Authority
92) Macon Water Authority
93) Mount Pleasant Waterworks
94) Newton County Water & Sewerage Authority
95) Orangeburg Department of Public Utilities
96) Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Auth.
97) Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority
98) Tampa Bay Water Authority
99) Walton County Water & Sewerage Authority
Other Enterprise Operations
Electric Operations
MEAG Power
1) Albany
2) College Park
3) Covington
4) Crisp County
5) Fairburn
6) Grantville

7)
8)
9)
10)
11)

Griffin
Lawrenceville
Marietta
Monroe
Quitman

Other Audited Electric Operations
12) Electric Power Board of Chattanooga, TN
13) Greer Commission of Public Works (WEG)

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

42)
43)
44)
45)
46)
47)
48)
49)
50)
51)

St. Marys
Stockbridge
Suwanee
Taylor Co.
Tifton
Toccoa
Tybee Island
Union City
Valdosta
Villa Rica

Florida
52) Arcadia
53) Bradenton
54) Cooper City
55) Crystal River
56) Ft. Myers Beach
57) Haines City
58) Islamorada
59) Lake Placid
60) Long Boat Key

61)
62)
63)
64)
65)

Marco Island
Naples
North Port
Palmetto
Plant City

Alabama
66) Tuscaloosa
North Carolina
67) New Bern
68) Orange Co.
69) Selma
South Carolina
70) Aiken
71) Clover
72) Goose Creek
Tennessee
73) Crossville

Other Enterprise Operations (Continued)
Gas Utilities
1) Albany
6) Lawrenceville
2) Americus
7) Pensacola, FL
3) Cordele
8) Social Circle
4) Covington
9) Tifton
5) Grantville
10) Toccoa
Stand‐Alone Audited Gas Operations
11) Austell Natural Gas System
Airport Operations
1) Albany
2) Athens‐Clarke County
3) Barrow County
4) Beaufort Co., SC ‐
Lady's Island
5) Beaufort Co., SC ‐
Hilton Head
6) Cochran
7) Covington
8) DeKalb County
9) Floyd County

10) Griffin
11) Henry County
12) Macon‐Bibb Co. ‐
Middle Georgia
Regional Airport
13) Macon‐Bibb Co. ‐
Downtown Airport
14) Paulding Co.

Airport
15) Pensacola, FL
16) Aiken, SC
17) Lancaster Co., SC

Stand‐Alone Audited Airport Operations
18) Augusta‐Richmond County Regional Airport
19) Cherokee Airport Authority
20) Cherokee Airport Authority
21) Glynn County Airport Commission
22) Gwinnett Airport Authority
Stand‐Alone Transits
1) Birmingham‐Jefferson County Transit Auth.
2) Central Midlands Regional Transit Auth.
3) Chattanooga Area Reg. Transportation Auth.
4) Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
5) Lowcountry Regional Transit Auth.
6) Macon Transit Authority
7) Santee Wateree Regional Transit Auth.
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School Systems. Boards of Education we have served within the past three (3) years are:
Georgia
1) Atlanta Independent School System
2) Baker County Board of Education
3) Bartow County Board of Education
4) Bibb County Board of Education
5) Bleckley County Board of Education
6) Brooks County Board of Education
7) Butts County Board of Education
8) Camden County Board of Education
9) Carroll County Board of Education
10) Cherokee County School District
11) City of Buford Board of Education
12) City of Carrollton Board of Education
13) City of Cartersville Board of Education
14) City of Decatur Board of Education
15) City of Gainesville Board of Education
16) City of Jefferson Board of Education
17) City of Marietta Board of Education
18) City of Rome Board of Education
19) Clay County Board of Education
20) Clayton County Board of Education
21) Cobb County Board of Education
22) Dodge County Board of Education
23) Douglas County Board of Education
24) Fayette County Board of Education
25) Forsyth County Board of Education
26) Fulton County Board of Education
27) Glynn County Board of Education
28) Gwinnett County Board of Education

29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)

Hancock County Board of Education
Henry County Board of Education
Marion County Board of Education
Oconee County Board of Education
Paulding County Board of Education
Peach County Board of Education
Polk County Board of Education
Putnam County Board of Education
Rockdale County Board of Education
Thomas County Board of Education
Troup County Board of Education
Twiggs County Board of Education
Walton County Board of Education
Ware County Board of Education

Florida
43) School Board of Highlands County
44) School Board of Manatee County
45) School District of Lee County
Tennessee
46) City of Bristol Board of Education
47) Hamilton County Department of Education
South Carolina
48) Lexington School District Four
49) Marlboro County School District
50) Richland County School District One

Charter School Systems. Charter schools we have served within the past three (3) years are:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)

Academy for Classical Education (ACE)
Atlanta Heights Charter Academy
Brighten Academy
Brookhaven Innovation Academy
Cherokee Charter Academy
Coweta Charter Academy
East Point Academy of South Carolina
Furlow Charter School
Georgia Online Academy
Georgia School for the Innovation & Classics
Gwinnett County BOE Charter Schools
Gwinnett Online Campus
Graduation Acheivement Charter High School
Imagine School at North Port
Imagine School at Palmer Ranch

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)

Ivy Preparatory Academy at Gwinnett
Ivy Preparatory Academy for Girls
Ivy Preparatory Young Men's Leadership Academy
Just for Girls Academy
Kendezi School
KIPP Metro Atlanta Collaborative
KIPP Opportunity Fund
KIPP South Fulton Academy
NW Florida State College ‐ Collegiate High School
Pataula Charter Academy
Phoenix Center Community Service Board
Provost Academy Georgia
Scintilla Charter Academy
Southwest Georgia STEM Charter School
State College of Florida ‐ Collegiate High School
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State Governmental Entities. States have many entities as part of financial reporting: agencies,
departments, university foundations, and other component units that are audited by an independent
public accounting firm. Please see the following for a listing of State governmental entities we have
audited in the past three (3) years:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)

Georgia Building Authority
Georgia Department of Community Health
Georgia Education Authority
Georgia Environmental Finance Authority
Georgia Higher Education Assistance Corp.
Georgia Higher Education Facilities Auth.
Georgia Lottery Corporation
Georgia Ports Authority
Georgia State Financing & Investment Commission
Georgia Student Finance Authority
Georgia Student Finance Commission
Georgia Superior Court Clerks' Coop. Authority
Georgia State Road and Tollway Authority
Stone Mountain Memorial Association
Abraham Baldwin Agricultural College Foundation
College of Coastal Georgia Foundation
Georgia Business Success Center
Georgia College & State University Foundation
Georgia Highlands College Foundation
Georgia Military College Foundation
Georgia Southern University Athletic Foundation

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)

Georgia Southern University Foundation
Georgia State University Athletic Association
Georgia State University Foundation
Kennesaw State University Athletic Association
Kennesaw State University Athletic Department
Kennesaw State University Foundation
Kennesaw State University Research Foundation
Medical College of Georgia Foundation
New College of Florida
Northwest Florida College Foundation
Polytechnic Foundation of Kennesaw State Univ.
REACH Georgia (of the Ga. Student Finance Comm.)
Southern Polytechnic Applied Research Foundation
State College of Florida Foundation
State College of Florida Sarasota‐Manatee, Inc.
University of Chattanooga Foundation
University of North Georgia Real Estate Foundation
University of North Georgia Foundation
University System of Georgia Foundation
University of West Georgia Athletic Foundation
University of West Georgia Foundation
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Other Governments. Other governmental entities we have audited within the past three (3) years are:
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)
43)
44)
45)
46)
47)
48)
49)
50)
51)
52)
53)
54)
55)
56)
57)
58)
59)
60)
61)
62)
63)
64)
65)
66)
67)
68)

Albany ‐ Dougherty Inner City Auth.
Allendale County Hospital
Atlanta Development Auth.
Atlanta Economic Renaissance Corporation
Atlanta Housing Opportunity
Augusta Utilities (Water / Sewer Ops)
Augusta‐Richmond County Regional Airport
Austell Natural Gas System
Barrow County Water & Sewer Authority
Bartram Trail Regional Library
Bayshore Gardens Park & Recreation District
Birmingham‐Jefferson County Transit Auth.
Bradenton Downtown Development Auth.
Bristol Joint Sewer System
Bristol Public Library
Brunswick ‐ Glynn Joint Water & Sewer Comm.
Catawba Water River Supply Project
Central Community Redevelopment Agency
Central Midlands Council of Govts.
Central Midlands Regional Transit Auth.
Central Savannah River Area Regional Comm.
Charleston Co. Aviation Comm.
Charleston Water System
Chatsworth Water Works Commission
Chattahoochee River 911 Auth.
Chattanooga Area Reg. Transportation Auth.
Chattanooga Area Regional Council of Govts.
Cherokee County Airport Auth.
City of Albany‐ Chehaw Park Auth.
City of Albany‐ Water, Gas & Light Comm.
City of East Point Retirement Plan
City of North Port, Fl. ‐ Firefighters' Pension
City of Sandy Springs Development Auth.
Classic Center Auth. of Clarke County
Clayton Co. Pension Fund
Clayton County Water & Sewer Authority
Cobb County ‐ Marietta Water Authority
Cobb County‐Marietta Water Auth. Pension
Columbia County Board of Health
Columbia Development Corp.
Columbia Empowerment Zone
Columbia Housing Development Corp.
Convention and Visitors Bureau of Dunwoody
Crisp Co.‐ Cordele Industrial Development Auth.
Crisp Co.‐ Cordele Industrial Development Council
Crisp County Power Commission
DeKalb County Public Library
Dev. Auth. of City of Jeffersonville & Twiggs Co.
Development Auth. of Cherokee County
Development Auth. of City of Roswell,GA
Development Auth. of Lumpkin County
Development Auth. of Peachtree City
Disabilities Board of Charleston County
Downtown Atlanta Revitalization
Eatonton‐Putnam Water & Sewer Authority
Eau Development Corporation
Edgefield County Water & Sewer Authority
Electric Power Board of Chattanooga
Ensor Forest Apartments
Forsyth County Public Library
Friends of Bulloch
Georgetown County Water & Sewer District
Georgia Charter Educational Foundation
Georgia Ports Auth. DB & OPEB Plan
Georgia Ports Auth. Defined Contribution Plan
Glynn County Airport Commission
Greenwood Commissioners of Public Works (WEG)
Greer Commission of Public Works

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

71)
72)
73)
74)
75)
76)
77)
78)
79)
80)
81)
82)
83)
84)
85)
86)
87)
88)
89)
90)
91)
92)
93)
94)
95)
96)
97)
98)
99)
100)
101)
102)
103)
104)
105)
106)
107)
108)
109)
110)
111)
112)
113)
114)
115)
116)
117)
118)
119)
120)
121)
122)
123)
124)
125)
126)
127)
128)
129)
130)
131)
132)
133)
134)
135)
136)
137)
138)

Gwinnett Civic/Cultural Center Operations
Gwinnett Convention and Visitors Bureau
Gwinnett County Airport Auth.
Gwinnett County Development Auth.
Gwinnett County Public Facilities Auth.
Gwinnett County Public Library
Gwinnett County Recreation Auth.
Gwinnett County Water and Sewerage Authority
Hamilton Co. Water & Wastewater Treatment Auth.
Hamilton County Election Commission
Heart of Georgia Altamaha Regional Commission
Henry County Water Authority
Historic Roswell Convention & Visitors Bureau
Housing Authority of Clayton County
Houston County Library System
Islamorada,Village of Islands, Florida
Jefferson Co. Economic and Industrial Dev Auth.
Keep Peachtree City Beautiful Commission
Kennesaw State University Athletic Department
Lakeland Area Mass Transit District
Lowcountry Regional Transit Authority
Lumpkin County Hospital Auth.
Lumpkin County Water & Sewerage Authority
Macon Transit Authority
Macon Water Authority
Macon‐Bibb County Land Bank Authority
Manatee County Mosquito Control Dist
Manatee Technical Institute
MARTA/ATU Local 732 Employees Retirement
McIntosh Trail Community Service Board
McPherson Implementing Local Redev. Auth.
McPherson Planning Local Redevelopment Auth.
Middle Georgia Community Service Board
Milledgeville‐Baldwin County Dev. Auth.
Mount Pleasant Waterworks
NE Corridor, LLC
New Bern Electrical System
Newton County Water & Sewerage Authority
North Fulton Regional Radio Auth.
Northeast Georgia Regional Commission
Northwest Florida State College Foundation
Ocean Highway and Port Auth. of Nassau County
Oconee Center Community Service Board
Orangeburg Co. Department of Disabilities & Special Needs
Pathways Center Community Service Board
Paulding County Airport Authority
Paulding County Industrial Development Authority
Peace River/Manasota Regional Water Supply Auth.
Peachtree City Convention & Visitor's Bureau
Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority
Phoenix Center Community Service Board
Public Bldg. Auth. of Knox Co. & City of Knoxville
Riverdale Downtown Development Auth.
River's Edge Community Service Board
Saluda Nursing Center
Sandy Springs Hospitality Board
Santee Wateree Regional Transit Auth.
Santee‐Lynches Reg. Council of Govts.
Santee‐Lynches Reg. Development Corp.
Sarasota School of Arts & Sciences
South Carolina Centers of Economic Excellence
South Florida Regional Transporation Auth.
Southeast Tennessee Development District
SOWEGA Council on Aging
Tampa Bay Water Authority
Toccoa‐Stephens County Public Library
Town Center Area Community Imp. District
Two Notch Development Corp.
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CAFR Certificates of Achievement & Excellence
Mauldin & Jenkins has served approximately 400 governments in the
past several years, and 105 governmental units who obtain the GFOA’s
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting (and,
or the ASBO’s Certificate of Excellence in Financial Reporting).

Mauldin & Jenkins’ clients have never failed to obtain the Certificate! Mauldin & Jenkins is
batting 1000%. Every CAFR submitted has received the award. The following are current clients:
Counties:
1) Athens‐Clarke Co.
2) Augusta‐Richmond Co.
3) Barrow Co.
4) Beaufort Co., SC
5) Cherokee Co.
6) Clayton Co.
7) Colleton Co., SC
8) Columbia Co.
9) Dekalb Co.
10) Douglas Co.
11) Edgefield Co., SC
12) Floyd Co.
13) Forsyth Co.
14) Gwinnett Co.
15) Hamilton Co., TN
16) Henry Co.
17) Jackson Co.
18) Lancaster Co., SC
19) Macon‐Bibb Co.
20) Oconee Co., SC
21) Orange Co., NC
22) Paulding Co.
23) Rockdale Co.
24) Spalding Co.
25) Walton Co.

Cities:
26) Aiken, SC
27) Albany
28) Alpharetta
29) Americus
30) Austell
31) Ball Ground
32) Beaufort, SC
33) Bradenton, FL
34) Bristol, TN
35) Brookhaven
36) Brunswick
37) Chamblee
38) Charleston, SC
39) Chamblee
40) College Park
41) Conyers
42) Cooper City, FL
43) Covington

Boards of Education:
80) Atlanta Public Schools
81) Bibb County Schools
82) Cartersville City Schools
83) Clayton County Schools
84) Cobb County Schools
85) Fayette County Schools
86) Fulton County Schools
87) Gwinnett County Schools
88) Lee County School District
89) Marietta City Schools
90) Richland Co. School District One

44)
45)
46)
47)
48)
49)
50)
51)
52)
53)
54)
55)
56)
57)
58)
59)
60)
61)

Decatur
Douglasville
Dunwoody
Fayetteville
Fairburn
Forest Park
Griffin
Haines City, FL
Hallandale Bch, FL
Hapeville
Hinesville
John's Creek
Kennesaw
Kingsland
Marco Island, FL
Longboat Key, FL
Milledgeville
Milton

62)
63)
64)
65)
66)
67)
68)
69)
70)
71)
72)
73)
74)
75)
76)
77)
78)
79)

Monroe
Morrow
Naples, FL
New Bern, NC
North Port, FL
Peachtree City
Pensacola, FL
Perry
Pinecrest, FL
Riverdale
Rockmart
Rome
Roswell
Sandy Springs
Suwanee
Tuscaloosa, AL
Union City
Valdosta

State Governmental Entities:
91) Ga. Environ. Fin. Auth. (GEFA)
92) Ga. Ports Authority
Other Governmental Entities:
93) Central Savannah River Area Regional Comm.
94) Charleston Water System
95) Clayton County Water Auth.
96) Cobb County ‐ Marietta Water Authority
97) Greenwood Commissioners of Public Works
98) Greer Commission of Public Works
99) Henry County Water Auth.
100) Lowcountry Regional Transportation Authority
101) Macon Water Authority
102) Mount Pleasant Waterworks
103) Public Building Authority of Knox Co. & Knoxville
104) South Florida Transportation Authority
105) Tampa Bay Water Authority

Client Testimony on Results of 1st Attempt. “We received the Certificate of Achievement from GFOA
this week. This was a team effort and I want to share with you how much I appreciate you and the
rest of the staff from Mauldin & Jenkins. You have an excellent team and should be very proud of
them. I look forward to continuing our relationship in the future.” Tim Schroer, Augusta ‐ Richmond
Co. (GA) Consolidated Government, Assistant Director of Finance
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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PAFR Experience
The GFOA established the Popular Annual Financial Report (PAFR) Awards Program in 1991 to encourage
and assist state and local governments to extract information from their comprehensive annual financial
report to produce a high quality PAFR. PAFR’s are specifically designed to be readily accessible and
easily understandable to the general public and other interested parties without a background in public
finance. The GFOA’s award program recognizes individual governments that are successful in achieving
that goal.
Mauldin & Jenkins currently serves twelve (12) local governments who prepare a PAFR on an annual
basis. We assist our clients in planning, developing and reviewing their PAFR’s, and believe such
deliverables to be extremely valuable to governments communicating their finances to the general
public.
Should the Commission be interested in preparing such a report, we would enjoy the opportunity to
assist.

Municipal Bond Experience
In case the Commission plans to issue and refund bonds in the coming years, we have elected to share
with the Commission some of our experience in the municipal bond area of auditing and financial
reporting.
Please see our qualifications regarding our bond program auditing experience within the past three (3)
years. Such qualifications include our auditing municipal bond programs with at least $50 million of
outstanding bonded debt for which much of the debt has been issued in the past three (3) years, and we
have issued numerous consent letters and comfort letters as part of the overall service to our
governmental clients during the issuance of such bonded debt. As part of such a large government
client base, Mauldin & Jenkins serves forty (40) clients who meet the above criteria.
Additionally, we audit the Georgia State Finance and Investment Commission (GSFIC) who has issued
several billions of general obligation bonds on behalf of the State of Georgia.
Please see the following for a sample of clients we have performed bond procedures, and, or audited
the financial statements for in the past three (3) years whose publicly issued debts are in excess of
$50,000,000:

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Governmental Entity
1)
2)
3)
4)
5)
6)
7)
8)
9)
10)
11)
12)
13)
14)
15)
16)
17)
18)
19)
20)
21)
22)
23)
24)
25)
26)
27)
28)
29)
30)
31)
32)
33)
34)
35)
36)
37)
38)
39)
40)
41)
42)

Amount

Georgia Road & Tollway Authority (SRTA)
DeKalb County, Georgia
Gwinnett County (Georgia) Board of Education
Gwinnett County, Georgia
Charleston Water System
Augusta‐Richmond County, Georgia
Lee County (Florida) School District
Atlanta Development Authority
Forsyth County (Georgia) Board of Education
Forsyth County, Georgia
Hamilton County, Tennessee
Athens‐Clarke County, Georgia
Georgia Higher Education Facilities Authority (GHEFA)
Beaufort County, South Carolina
Henry County (Georgia) Board of Education
Henry County (Georgia) Water & Sewer Authority
Douglas County (Georgia) Board of Education
Columbia County, Georgia
City of College Park, Georgia
Clayton County (Georgia) Water Authority
City of Charleston, South Carolina
Rockdale County, Georgia
Macon‐Bibb County, Georgia
Clayton County, Georgia
Paulding County, Georgia
Fulton County Board of Education
Georgia Environmental Finance Authority
Atlanta Public Schools
Macon (Georgia) Water Authority
Cherokee County, Georgia
Orange County, North Carolina
Walton County, Georgia
City of Decatur
Cobb County ‐ Marietta Water Authority
Barrow County, Georgia
City of Griffin, Georgia
City of Lawrenceville
Fayette County (Georgia) Board of Education
Lancaster County, South Carolina
City of Albany, Georgia
Walton County Board of Education
City of Rome

$

1,368,067,000
1,220,960,000
1,118,860,000
948,147,000
652,683,000
565,186,000
418,628,000
318,880,000
316,565,000
298,437,000
272,965,000
261,461,000
243,065,000
214,656,000
189,960,000
187,771,000
174,973,000
164,131,000
157,445,000
151,080,000
142,960,000
122,567,075
117,189,000
113,210,000
109,000,000
100,348,000
91,980,000
91,880,000
86,865,000
86,765,000
82,473,000
79,129,000
77,926,000
76,620,000
72,950,000
66,931,000
61,465,000
57,055,000
55,139,000
54,796,000
53,105,000
50,000,000

Clients with Publicly Issued Debt Over $50 Million

$

11,094,000,000

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Audits of Federally Funded Programs (Single Audits)
Relative to audits of calendar year 2014, Mauldin & Jenkins audits 147
entities representing approximately $8.1 billion in federal
expenditures for state, local government, and non‐profit clients which
is the:
 10th highest among public accounting firms in the nation as it
relates to total expenditures audited under the Single Audit Act;
and,
 26th highest among public accounting firms in the nation as it
relates to number of Single Audits conducted.
For the year ended June 30, 2015, and relative to the State of Georgia governmental unit, Mauldin &
Jenkins performed Single Audit compliance testing on approximately $6.8 billion of federal
expenditures, and provided the reports required by Government Auditing Standards to the DOAA who
incorporated such reports into the statewide Single Audit reporting package.
Mauldin and Jenkins serves a significant amount of clients who require substantial single audits. In
January 2008, as part of the Federal Department of Education’s random testing of the audits of local
boards of education, a review was performed by the Federal Office of Inspector General (OIG) regarding
a Single Audit engagement of a local board of education. We are quite pleased to note the examiner
provided Mauldin & Jenkins a letter of high marks for the performance of the respective Single Audit
and this comes at a time when Federal regulators are condemning the profession for poor performance
of such Single Audits. Unofficially and orally provided, the examiner noted this Single Audit
engagement to be the best such engagement reviewed in his experience.

Other Attestation Services
Other attestation services beyond financial and compliance audits which Mauldin & Jenkins currently
provides to our clients include:




Forensic audits
Performance audits
Information systems audits

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC





Agreed‐upon procedures
Bond issuance services
Fixed asset inventory services
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Other Non‐Attestation Services
Other services beyond the above attestation types which Mauldin & Jenkins currently provides to our
clients include:











Federal and state income tax
planning/return preparation
International tax matters
Multi‐state income tax issues
Payroll tax issues
Information technology (IT)
systems consulting
Cost accounting analysis
Cost segregation services
Business & strategic planning
Profitability consulting
Budgeting











Merger / acquisition & expansion financing
Buy‐Sell agreements and business valuations
Estate planning
Employee benefit plan accounting and
administration
State sales tax matters
Healthcare cost reimbursement
Human resources (HR) predictive index
services and interviewing and hiring
Business, strategic and succession planning
Information systems consulting and
technology engagements

Similar Clients
In addressing the Commission’s interest in the qualifications and client references of Mauldin & Jenkins
and the request for audits performed for local governmental units in the last five (5) years, we have
elected to report on five (5) entities which most closely resemble the Commission in size and services
(total staff hours). Should management of the Commission need some additional references, we would
be happy to provide such data. The five (5) entities we audit are noted on the following page.
1) Charleston Water System
General Information

Dates

Water Commission located in Charleston, South Carolina that currently has
over $1.3 billion in assets and annual revenues of approximately $150
million. The Commission serves approximately 225,000 citizens.
Financial audits and compliance audits in accordance with Uniform
Guidance and maintenance of the GFOA Certificate of Achievement.
Preparation of financial statements.
December 31, 2014 through present

Partners

Miller Edwards and David Irwin

Contact Information

Mr. Wesley Ropp, Chief Financial Officer, or Ms. Cynthia Wood, Accounting
Manager ‐ (843) 727‐6936 ‐ roppjw@charlestoncpw.com or
woodcj@charlestoncpw.com

Scope & Type of
Engagement

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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2) Clayton County Water Authority
General Information

Dates

Water Authority located in southeast Atlanta, Georgia that currently has
over $660 million in assets and annual revenues of approximately $90
million. The Authority currently serves approximately 75,500 citizens.
Financial audits and compliance audits in accordance with Uniform
Guidance preparation of CAFR and the maintenance of the Certificate of
Achievement awarded by GFOA.
June 30, 2009 through present

Partners

Meredith Lipson, Miller Edwards, and David Irwin

Contact Information

Ms. Allison Halron, Finance Director (770) 960‐6977 ‐
allison.halron@ccwa.us

Scope & Type of
Engagement

3) Tampa Bay Water
General Information

Dates

Regional Water System serving a population area of approximately 2.4
million. Tampa Bay Water has assets of approximately $1.9 billion and
annual revenues of approximately $155 million.
Financial audits and compliance audits in accordance with Uniform
Guidance preparation of CAFR and the maintenance of the Certificate of
Achievement awarded by GFOA.
September 30, 2017 through present

Partners

Wade Sansbury and Miller Edwards

Contact Information

Mr. Sandro Svrdlin – (727) 791‐2306 – ssvrdlin@tampabaywater.org

Scope & Type of
Engagement

4) Newton County Water & Sewerage Authority
General Information

Scope & Type of
Engagement

Water Authority located east of Atlanta, Georgia that currently has over
$113 million in assets and annual revenues of approximately $20 million.
The Authority currently serves approximately 22,500 citizens.
Financial audits and compliance audits in accordance with Uniform
Guidance preparation of the financial statements.

Dates

June 30, 2009 through present

Partners

Miller Edwards and David Irwin

Contact Information

Mr. Mike Hopkins – (770) 787‐1375 – mah@ncwsa.us

5) Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority
General Information

Scope & Type of
Engagement

Water Authority located southwest of Atlanta, Georgia that currently has
over $42 million in assets and annual revenues of approximately
$10million. The Authority currently serves approximately 10,000 citizens.
Financial audits and compliance audits in accordance with Uniform
Guidance preparation of the financial statements.

Dates

September 30, 2007 through present

Partners

Miller Edwards and David Irwin

Contact Information

Ms. Lynda Price – (770) 487‐7993 – lprice@pcwasa.org

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Communications
During the course of serving our clients, we stress the importance of timely and frequent
communication. Such communication takes place throughout the audit and throughout the year, and
includes proactive communications regarding new and upcoming accounting standards and auditing
standards, as well as, the availability to answer questions and provide advice to the government. We
believe such communication is a key to providing timely value‐added service to our clients.
At the conclusion of the audit process, Mauldin & Jenkins prepares an Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis,
which provides auditor insight and summarizes the audit process, conclusions, and year end financial
analysis all under one cover.
Elements of the Audit Summary Report include the following:










Information about the firm, and the respective personnel serving the
government;
Results of the audit and other matters which should be emphasized to the
governing board;
An overview of the governments year‐end financial results and auditor insights
relative to key financial elements of the government;
An understanding of the interal control / compliance audit reports and the
results of our testing of internal controls and compliance with laws and
regulations;
A summary of certain audit scopes and procedures utilized by Mauldin & Jenkins
duirng the audit process;
Documentation of certain required communications as required by auditing
standards;
If applicable, a summary of any findings (material weaknesses and, or significant
deficiencies) and management recommendations resulting from the audit;
Practical information regarding upcoming new financial reporting and auditing
standards and pronouncements affecting the government; and,
A summary of the free continuing education and newsletters made available to
the government during the past year.

In addressing any issue, communication and timely resolution are critical. Mauldin & Jenkins prides
itself in developing professional relationships and rapport with clients which facilitate open and honest
communication. Mauldin & Jenkins’s stance is always based on reporting meaningful information to the
financial statement users, but understanding that the financial statements are the entity’s
representations. To do less would compromise our independent status.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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We use the following approach to seek a mutually agreeable resolution of accounting and reporting
issues:
Step 1 Define and understand the issue through discussion with the entity’s management and
verified audit information.
Step 2 Make an initial assessment of the impact of alternative accounting treatments.
Step 3 If the impact has significant potential; gather research which may include the following:
obtain the entity’s research and rationale for their position; gather additional details;
draw on common practices within other Georgia governments or other similar sized
governments; utilize recognized firm experts.
Step 4 Discuss with entity staff the firm’s preferred position and rationale.
Step 5 Resolve the issue.

Relationship Management
In order to provide the highest quality service in the most cost efficient manner, Mauldin & Jenkins has
formed a client service team which will function as a cohesive unit, and would represent a superb
assortment of talent and experience for the audit of the Commission. The unit would be assembled as
follows:

Miller Edwards
Engagement Partner

Meredith Lipson
Partner in Charge
of Fieldwork

Joel Black
Quality Control Partner

Grant Davis
Senior Manager

Kris Trainor
Certified Fraud
Examiner
Randy Upchurch
Certified Info.
Systems Auditor

Audit Engagement
Team Staff

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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The above team dedicated to audit the Commission will include (at a minimum): two (2) partners, one
(1) full‐time manager, and at least one (1) staff professional. The manager (Grant Davis) and the staff
professionals will be substantially on‐site full time throughout the conduct of their role in the audit.
Other governmental audit professionals will be available to assist throughout the fieldwork and the
preparation of the financial reports. The audit partner in‐charge of fieldwork will correspond with the
Commission management on financial reporting, audit, and related issues on an ongoing basis, and this
individual will also be dedicated to serve the Commission throughout fieldwork, reporting and
conclusion in all respective fiscal years. Mauldin & Jenkins has the depth of resources which allows us to
provide you with significant resources of knowledgeable professionals to meet your deadlines.
We realize that, regardless of our Firm’s qualifications, the quality of service the Commission receives
will correlate directly to the skill level, dedication, and resourcefulness of your audit engagement team.
The individuals listed below have been selected to serve the Commission based on their years of hands‐
on experience working with government entities, and for their commitment to exceeding client
expectations. Your team members are dedicated and resourceful, and among the most talented in their
field. We encourage you to contact us whenever you have questions and to view us not just as auditors,
but as true advisors. Please see the following pages for information on several key individuals who are
available to serve the Commission during the audit process.

Miller G. Edwards, CPA
Lead Partner & Ultimate Partner Responsible
Miller Edwards is a partner and a certified public accountant with Mauldin &
Jenkins. His experience covers a variety of clients in federal, state, and local
government. He is responsible for the firm‐wide governmental practice division
of Mauldin & Jenkins. Miller is also a former multi‐term member of the Firm’s
Executive Committee which governs the actions and directions of the Firm, and
he is a member of the Firm’s Audit & Accounting (A&A) Committee.
Years of Professional Experience and Years with Firm
Beginning in June of 1986, Miller has approximately (30) years experience in providing public accounting
services to the governmental sector, all of which has occurred as an auditor with Mauldin & Jenkins.
Since becoming a partner, Mauldin & Jenkins has become the leader in auditing state and local
governmental units in the Southeast helping the Firm achieve the status of auditing the aggregation of
more cities, counties, school systems, other local governmental units, state agencies and authorities
than any other certified public accounting firm. Under Miller’s leadership, Mauldin & Jenkins now
serves approximately 400 governmental units. As a partner, Miller serves both large and small
governmental units, and is involved directly (as lead partner) and indirectly (as quality control partner) in
serving over 100 such governmental entities over the past three (3) years.
List of Governmental Clients Served in the Last Three (3) Years
Counties:
 Beaufort County, SC
 Cherokee County
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC





Peach County
Rockdale County
Spalding County





City of Conyers
City of Cordele
City of Covington
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Clayton County
Colleton County, SC
Columbia County
Crisp County
Darlington County, SC
DeKalb County
Dougherty County
Edgefield County, SC
Gwinnett County
Hamilton County, TN
Henry County
Jeff Davis County
Jones County
Lancaster County, SC
Laurens County, SC
Lincoln County
Macon County
McIntosh County
Monroe County
Newton County
Oconee County, SC





Stephens County
Taylor County
Toombs County

Consolidated Governments
 Athens‐Clarke County
 Augusta‐Richmond County
 Macon‐Bibb County
Cities:
 City of Aiken, SC
 City of Albany
 City of Americus
 City of Beaufort, SC
 Town of Braselton
 City of Brunswick
 City of Byron
 City of Charleston, SC
 Town of Clover, SC
 City of College Park

Boards of Education:
 Atlanta Public Schools
 Baldwin County Board of Education
 Bibb County Board of Education
 Bleckley County Board of Education
 Brooks County Board of Education
 Butts County Board of Education
 Camden County Board of Education
 City Schools of Decatur
 Clayton County Board of Education
 Fayette County Board of Education
 Fulton County Board of Education
 Glynn County Board of Education
 Hamilton County (TN) Department of Education
 Hancock County Board of Education
 Henry County Board of Education
 Marion County Board of Education
 Oconee County Board of Education
 Peach County Board of Education
 Putnam County Board of Education
 Twiggs County Board of Education
State of Georgia Entities:
 Ga. Department of Community Health (DCH)
 Ga. Building Authority (GBA)
 Ga. Environmental Finance Auth. (GEFA)
 Ga. Higher Education Assist. Corporation
 Ga. Higher Education Facilities Authority (GHEFA)
 Ga. Lottery Corporation (Lotto)
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC























City of Decatur
City of Fayetteville
City of Goose Creek, SC
City of Gordon
City of Griffin
City of Hinesville
City of Kingsland
City of Leesburg
City of Loris, SC
City of Milledgeville
City of Morrow
City of Peachtree City
City of Perry
City of Quitman
City of Riverdale
City of Rome
City of Sharpsburg
Town of Summerville, SC
City of Suwanee
City of Tybee Island
City of Union City

Other Governmental Units:
 Academy for Classical Education (ACE)
 Aiken Corporation
 Albany Water, Gas & Light Commission
 Bristol (TN) Public Library
 Catawba River (SC) Water Supply Project
 Central Midlands (SC) Transit Authority
 Central Savannah River Area Reg. Commission
 Charleston (SC) Water System
 Clayton County Housing Authority
 Clayton County Water Authority
 Clayton County Retirement / Pension Plan
 Crisp County Power Commission
 Crisp County ‐ Cordele Industrial Dev. Auth.
 East Point Defined Benefit Plan
 Eatonton‐Putnam Co. Water & Sewer Auth.
 Furlow Charter School
 Hamilton Co. (TN) Water & Wastewater
Treatment Auth.
 Heart of Georgia Altamaha Reg. Commission
 Georgia Ports Authority Defined Benefit Plan
 Georgia Ports Auth. OPEB Plan
 Georgia Ports Auth. Defined Contribution Plan
 Greenwood (SC) Comm. of Public Works
 Henry County Water Authority
 Liberty Consolidated Planning Commission
 Low Country (SC) Regional Transit Authority
 Macon Water Authority
 MARTA Retirement Plan
 Mount Pleasant (SC) Waterworks
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Ga. Ports Authority (GPA)
Ga. State Financing & Investment Comm. (GSFIC)
Ga. State Road & Tollway Authority (SRTA)
Ga. Student Finance Authority (GSFA)





Newton County Water & Sewerage Authority
Northeast Georgia Regional Commission
Peachtree City Water & Sewerage Authority

Prior to working solely with governmental entities, Miller has governmental auditing experience with
several Federal governmental agencies including, but not limited to, the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC). He has audited consolidated offices under the governance of the FDIC in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, and the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A‐133. Such FDIC audits involved operations
which individually maintained assets in excess of $2 billion.
Miller has been the lead partner / auditor for sixteen (16) years relative to the audit of the State of
Georgia’s Department of Community Health which manages: a) the Medicaid program in Georgia; as
well as, b) the State Health Benefit Plan that serves State of Georgia employees and teachers in the
public school sector. This entity typically reflects overall revenues in excess of $13 billion annually and
carries assets of over $1 billion.
Degree/Certifications and Audit Training
Miller graduated in 1986 from the University of Georgia with a Bachelor of Business Administration and
double majors in 1) Accounting, and 2) Risk Management & Insurance. Miller has obtained and
instructed a significant amount of continuing professional education over the last several years
including:


2017 M&J Annual Governmental Conference – Athens, Georgia (3 days) – Instructor and
Participant
 2017 City of Dunwoody Accounting Conference – GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures;
Interfund Activities and Deficits in Government; Communicating Financial Information to Non‐
Financial People – Dunwoody, Georgia – Instructor
 2017 CPA Crossings, LLC – Communicating Financial Information to Non‐Accountants – Webinar
– Participant
 2017 M&J Information Systems Technology Update – Macon, Georgia – Participant
 2017 University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of Government Introductory and Intermediate
Accounting and Financial Reporting to employees of State & Local Governments of Georgia (6
days of instruction) – Warner Robins, Georgia – Instructor
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
 2016 Institute of Continuing Legal Education in Georgia, Economic Development Law in Georgia,
GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures – Atlanta, Georgia – Instructor
 2016 South Carolina GFOA Fall Conference, GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures – Myrtle
Beach, South Carolina – Instructor
 2016 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Annual Conference, Evaluatiing Local
Government Financial Condition – Stone Mountain Park (Georgia) (3 days) – Instructor and
Participant
 2016 M&J GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures – Kennesaw and Macon, Georgia – Instructor
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2016 M&J Learning, Education, Application & Performance (LEAP) Conference, Introduction to
Governmental Audit, Accounting and Financial Reporting – Athens, Georgia – Instructor
 2016 M&J Annual Governmental Conference – Cuscowilla Resort at Lake Oconee, Eatonton,
Georgia (3 days) – Instructor and Participant
 2016 Association of County Commissioners of Georgia , Summer Meetings 5 Day Tour Across
Georgia (Union County, Douglas County, Sumter County, Appling County and Baldwin County)
GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures, in five sessions provided in June 2016 – Instructor.
 2016 Association of County Commissioners of Georgia , GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures,
in two sessions provided in April and May of 2016 – Instructor.
 2016 South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants, GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement
Disclosures – Instructor.
 2016 South Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants, Measuring the Financial Health
of Local Governments – Instructor.
 2016 City of Dunwoody Accounting Conference – GASB No. 77 Tax Abatement Disclosures and
GASB Update – Dunwoody, Georgia – Instructor.
 2016 University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of Government Introductory and Intermediate
Accounting and Financial Reporting to employees of State & Local Governments of Georgia (6
days of instruction) – Macon, Georgia – Instructor
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
 2015 Georgia Society of CPA’s, Measuring & Evaluating Financial & Non–Financial Health of
Governments at the Governmental Accounting & Auditing Conference – Atlanta, Georgia –
Instructor and Participant
 2015 Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), 20th Annual Governmental GAAP Update
– Live Streaming Webcast – Participant
 2015 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Annual Conference, GASB Update –
Jekyll Island, Georgia (3 days) – Instructor and Participant
 2015 M&J Implementing the New Government Pension Standards – Charleston, South Carolina
– Instructor and Participant
 2015 McGladrey Southeast Regional Alliance Meeting – Atlanta, Georgia (2 days) – Participant
 2015 M&J Annual Governmental Conference – Athens, Georgia (3 days) – Instructor and
Participant
 2015 M&J Learning, Education, Application & Performance (LEAP) Conference, Introduction to
Governmental Audit, Accounting and Financial Reporting – Athens, Georgia – Instructor
 2015 Predictive Index Conference – Personnel Management & Mentoring – Atlanta, Georgia (2
days) – Participant
 2015 ACCG Design Team Meeting – Managing the Audit Process – Rome, Georgia – Participant
 2015 University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of Government Introductory and Intermediate
Accounting and Financial Reporting to employees of State & Local Governments of Georgia (8
days of instruction) – Macon, Georgia – Instructor
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
Miller coordinates the annual Mauldin & Jenkins three (3) days governmental training conference each
year which provides advanced training to experienced governmental auditors of the firm. He also
participates in providing annual instruction at the Mauldin & Jenkins LEAP conference which introduces
younger people to the various niches of the firm, including governmental.
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Miller has been an instructor/consultant for the University of Georgia’s Carl Vinson Institute of
Government since 2002, and provides continuing education to state and local government officials on
the subjects of governmental accounting and financial reporting. He provides similar instructional
services on behalf of the Georgia Government Finance Officers Association (GGFOA), the Government
Finance Officers Association of South Carolina (GFOASC), the Government Finance Officers Association
of Alabama (GFOAA), the Georgia Society of Certified Public Accountants (GSCPA), and the South
Carolina Association of Certified Public Accountants (SCACPA), and is often a guest speaker at various
governmental trade shows and conventions, and governmental audit / accounting conferences. Miller
also is the lead instructor at the Firm’s annual governmental conference and participates in the Firm’s
periodic continuing education provided to governmental clients provided throughout each year covering
a variety of subjects.
Miller was honored with the GGFOA’s award for “Outstanding Service to the GGFOA” during the annual
conference held in Savannah in October 2003, recognizing his leadership and effort in providing
direction and training on various topics affecting local governmental entities. Further, on behalf of
Mauldin & Jenkins, Miller accepted the GGFOA’s President’s Award recognizing Mauldin & Jenkins
efforts in the governmental arena in Georgia as of October 2007.
Professional and Civic Activities
Miller is a Certified Public Accountant with licenses held and maintained in Georgia and Florida. He is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Georgia Society of Certified Public
Accountants, the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA), and the Georgia Government
Finance Officers Association (GGFOA).
Practice mobility for CPAs is the general ability of a licensee in good standing from a substantially
equivalent state to gain practice privilege outside of their home state without getting an additional
license in the state where they will be serving a client or an employer. Under the mobility concept,
Miller can practice being a certified public accountant in any state in the United States of America.

Joel Black , CPA
Quality Control Partner
Joel Black is a member (i.e., partner) and a certified public accountant with
Mauldin & Jenkins. Joel is licensed to practice in the State of South Carolina. His
experience covers a variety of clients in federal, state, and local government, and
non‐profit organizations. He currently serves on the firm’s Audit and Accounting
(A&A) Committee, helping establish audit policies and answering technical
questions for the firm’s governmental partner group.
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Years of Professional Experience and Years with Firm
Joel has over 22 years of experience in public accounting, 12 years of which was with KPMG LLP serving
a wide range of government clients. He joined Mauldin & Jenkins in 2004, becoming a partner in 2005.
Joel serves on the Executive Committee of the AICPA’s Government Audit Quality Center and recently
served as the chairman for one of five national AICPA task forces focused on improving the quality of
Single Audits within the auditing profession. His task force encompasses improving the testing of
internal controls and compliance. Among his duties include rewriting three chapters of the AICPA Audit
Guide on Government Auditing Standards and OMB Circular A‐133 Audits. While at KPMG, he served as
one of six managers within the firm who were GASB Statement No. 34 technical resources—answering
questions on behalf of the firm’s Department of Professional Practice for KPMG personnel around the
country.
List of Audits Performed for Governments in the Last Three Years
Counties:
 Athens‐Clarke Co. Unified Gov.
 Cherokee County
 DeKalb County
 Dougherty County
 Gwinnett County
 Forsyth County
 Hamilton County, TN
 Lumpkin County
 Paulding County
 Union County
 Walton County
Cities:
 City of Alpharetta
 City of Bristol, TN
 City of Brookhaven
 City of Chattahoochee Hills
 City of College Park
 City of Decatur
 City of Doraville
 City of Duluth
 City of Dunwoody
 City of Fairburn
 City of Forest Park
 City of Jefferson
 City of Johns Creek
 City of Kennesaw
 City of Lawrenceville
 City of Lilburn
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

State Entities:
 Ga. Department of Community Health
 Ga. Environmental Finance Auth. (GEFA)
 Ga. Environmental Loan Acquisition Corp.
 Ga. Higher Education Facilities Authority
 Ga. Lottery Corporation
 Ga. State Financing & Investment Commission
Other Governmental Units:
 Atlanta Development Authority
 Atlanta Beltline, Inc.
 Atlanta Housing Opportunity, Inc.
 Birmingham‐Jefferson Co. Transit Authority
 Bristol Public Library
 Chattahoochee River 911 Authority
 City of Atlanta Tax Allocation Districts (6)
 City of East Point Retirement Plan
 DeKalb County Public Library
 Downtown Development Authority of Atlanta
 Fulton County BOE Retirement System
 Georgia Ports Authority Defined Benefit Plan
 Georgia Ports Auth. OPEB Plan
 Georgia Ports Auth. Defined Contribution Plan
 Gwinnett County BOE Retirement System
 Gwinnett Center
 Gwinnett Convention & Visitors Bureau
 Gwinnett County Development Authority
 Gwinnett County Public Library
 Gwinnett County Water & Sewerage Authority
 Gwinnett County Retirement Plan
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City of Peachtree Corners
City of Powder Springs
City of Roswell
City of Riverdale
City of Sandy Springs
City of Suwanee
City of Toccoa

Boards of Education:
 Atlanta Public Schools
 City of Bristol, TN Public Schools
 City of Carrolton Board of Education
 City of Rome Board of Education
 Cobb County Board of Education












Gwinnett County OPEB Health Plan
Joint Sewerage System (Bristol, TN & VA)
Public Building Authority of Knox County
Riverdale Downtown Development Authority
Atlanta Urban Residential Finance Authority
Forsyth County Board of Education
Fulton County Board of Education
Gwinnett County Board of Education
Hamilton County Department of Education
Walton County Board of Education

Degree/Certifications and Audit Training
Joel graduated from Georgia State University with a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting.
Joel coordinates the Mauldin & Jenkins annual three day training for all governmental partners and staff
and also developed and instructed the internal training on the Risk Assessment Standards and Clarified
Standards for audits. He also coordinates and leads the instruction of the free quarterly CPE provided to
our clients.
Joel has obtained and instructed a significant amount of continuing professional education over the last
three years including:



















2017 South Carolina Association of CPAs – Upstate Accounting Show – Instructor
2017 M&J Government Client Training – 3rd Quarter ‐ Instructor
2017 AICPA Webcast – Accounting and Auditing OPEB ‐ Instructor
2017 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Annual Conference – Instructor
2017 Florida Society of CPAs – Governmental Conference ‐ Instructor
2017 AICPA Government Accounting and Auditing Conference, Washington DC – Instructor
2017 M&J Internal Government Conference ‐ Instructor
2017 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Webcast – Financial Reporting
Model Re‐examination ‐ Instructor
2017 City of Dunwoody Accounting Conference – Instructor
2017 AGA, Atlanta Chapter Government Accountability Training ‐ Instructor
2017 GSCPA, Non‐Profit Accounting and Auditing Conference – Instructor
2017 AICPA, GAQC Annual Update National Webcast ‐ Instructor
2016 GSCPA, Government Accounting and Auditing Conference – Instructor
2016 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Webcast – OPEB ‐ Instructor
2016 AICPA Government and Not‐for‐Profit Training Prog. – Las Vegas – Instructor
2016 AICPA Webcast – GASB Fair Value Audit and Accounting Issues ‐ Instructor
2016 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Annual Conference – Instructor
2016 Georgia Pension Trust Officers Association Conference ‐ Instructor
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2016 M&J Internal Government Conference ‐ Instructor
2016 North Carolina SCPAs – Local Government Conference ‐ Instructor
2016 City of Dunwoody Accounting Conference ‐ Instructor
2016 GSCPA, Non‐Profit Accounting and Auditing Conference ‐ Instructor
2016 M&J Government Client Training – 1st Quarter ‐ Instructor
2016 AICPA Webcast – Internal Control COSO and More – Instructor
2015 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Webcast – GASB 68 ‐ Instructor
2015 AICPA Webcast – Single Audit Fundamentals ‐ Instructor
2015 M&J Government Client Training – 4th Quarter ‐ Instructor
2015 AICPA Government and Not‐for‐Profit Training Prog. – New Orleans ‐ Instructor
2015 Georgia Government Finance Officers Association Annual Conference – Instructor
2015 Georgia Economic Developers Association Annual Conference ‐ Instructor
2015 M&J Sponsored Training on GASB 68 – Charleston, SC ‐ Instructor
2015 M&J Internal Government Conference ‐ Instructor
2015 M&J Government Client Training – 1st Quarter ‐ Instructor
2015 GSCPA, Non‐Profit Accounting and Auditing Conference ‐ Instructor

Joel is often a speaker at government accounting and auditing conferences, many of which are noted
above, and was on the planning committee for the annual AICPA Government and Not‐for‐Profit
Training Program in the fall of 2014. Joel serves as a Technical Reviewer for the GFOA in the CAFR
certificate of excellence in financial reporting program and also served as one of eight senior managers
on KPMG’s professional practice and quality assurance team, performing technical reviews on various
Single Audit engagements from other offices throughout the United States.
Professional and Civic Activities
Joel is a certified public accountant with licenses in Georgia, South Carolina, and Florida, and a member
of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Georgia Society of Certified Public
Accountants, the Government Finance Officers Association, the Georgia Government Finance Officers
Association, and the Association of Government Accountants. He has previously served on the Zoning
Appeals Board for the City of Sugar Hill, Georgia.

Meredith Lipson, CPA
Partner in Charge of Fieldwork
Meredith Lipson is a member (i.e., partner) and a certified public accountant
with Mauldin & Jenkins. Her experience covers a variety of clients in state and
local governments and non‐profit organizations. She is registered and licensed
to practice in the State of Georgia and the State of Florida. Meredith is a
partner who works exclusively in the Firm’s governmental practice sector.
Years of Professional Experience
Meredith has twenty‐seven (27) years of experience with the Firm. She has served on the Firm’s Partner
Advisory Board and currently serves on the Firm’s Leadership and Career Development Committee.
Meredith also serves as the Community Service Project Coordinator for the Firm’s Macon office.
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Meredith serves both large and small governmental units, and is involved in serving over sixty (60) such
governmental entities. Meredith obtained her CPA certificate in 1993.
List of Governmental Clients Served in the Past Three Years
The following is a summary of governmental clients served by Meredith in the capacity of engagement
partner in‐charge or concurring review partner.
Counties:
 Athens‐Clarke County
 Augusta‐Richmond County
 Clayton County
 Columbia County
 Crisp County
 Dougherty County
 Gwinnett County
 Henry County
 Jones County
 Lincoln County
 Macon County
 Macon‐Bibb County
 McIntosh County
 Mitchell County
 Monroe County
 Peach County
 Rockdale County
 Spalding County
 Stephens County
 Taylor County
 Tift County
 Toombs County
 Edgefield County, SC
Boards of Education:
 Bibb County Board of Education
 Clayton County Board of Education
 Camden County Board of Education
 Fayette County Board of Education
 Glynn County Board of Education
 Henry County Board of Education
 Marion County Board of Education
 Putnam County Board of Education
 Thomas County Board of Education
 Ware County Board of Education

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Cities:
 City of Albany
 City of Americus
 City of College Park
 City of Conyers
 City of Cordele
 City of Covington
 City of Fayetteville
 City of Forest Park
 City of Griffin
 City of Macon
 City of Milledgeville
 City of Morrow
 City of Pensacola, FL
 City of Perry
 City of Riverdale
 City of Suwanee
 City of Peachtree City
 City of Stockbridge
 City of Tifton
 City of Tybee Island
 City of Union City
 City of Valdosta
 City of Naples, FL
 City of Longboat Key, FL
 City of Northport, FL
 Town of Fort Myers Beach, FL
 City of Haynes City, FL
State of Georgia Entities:
 Georgia Department of Community Health
 Ga. Higher Education Assist. Corporation
 Georgia Student Finance Authority
 Georgia Ports Authority
 Stone Mountain Memorial Association
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Other Governmental Units:
 Albany Water, Gas & Light Commission
 Albany Dougherty Inner City Authority
 Bartram Trail Regional Library
 Central Savannah River Area Regional
Commission
 Chatsworth Water Works Commission
 Chehaw Park Authority
 City of East Point Retirement Plan
 City of NorthPort Police Pension
 City of NorthPort General Employee’s Pension
 Clayton County Housing Authority
 Clayton County Pension
 Clayton County Water Authority
 Crisp County Power Commission
 Development Authority of Jeffersonville &
Twiggs County

















Northeast Georgia Regional Commission
Eatonton Putnam Water & Sewer Authority
Georgia Ports Authority Defined Contrib Plan
Georgia Ports Authority DB & OPEB Plan
Gwinnett Convention & Visitors Bureau
Gwinnett County Development Authority
Gwinnett County Public Library
Heart of GA Altamaha Regional Commission
Henry County Water & Sewerage Authority
Housing Authority of Clayton County
Macon Bibb County Land Bank Authority
Macon Water Authority
MARTA/ATU Local 732 Employees Ret. Plan
Milledgeville Baldwin County Development
Authority
Toccoa‐Stephens County Public Library

Degree/Certifications and Audit Training
Meredith graduated from the University of Georgia with a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting. She has been a featured speaker at various GGFOA Conferences and other GGFOA
workshops, free quarterly CPE provided to our clients, and several internal conferences.
Meredith has obtained and instructed a significant amount of continuing professional education over
the last three years including:

















2017 National AICPA Not‐for‐Profit Conference, Washington, DC
2017 Mauldin & Jenkins Annual Governmental Conference, Athens, Georgia
2017 Single Audit Training, Atlanta, Georgia
2017 GGFOA Annual Conference, Savannah, Georgia
2017 City of Dunwoody Annual Accounting Conference, Instructor
2016 Georgia Education Advancement Council Annual Conference, Savannah, Georgia
2016 GGFOA Annual Conference, Stone Mountain, Georgia
2016 Mauldin & Jenkins Governmental Conference, Lake Oconee, Georgia
2016 City of Dunwoody Annual Accounting Conference, Dunwoody, Georgia ‐ Instructor
2016 GASBO Annual Conference, Augusta Georgia
2016 Mauldin & Jenkins Entrepreneurial Services Conference, Athens, Georgia
2015 GASBO Annual Conference, Augusta Georgia
2015 Georgia Education Advancement Council Annual Conference, Young Harris, Georgia
2015 GGFOA Annual Conference, Jekyll Island, Georgia
2015 Mauldin & Jenkins Governmental Conference, Athens, Georgia
2015 Mauldin & Jenkins Entrepreneurial Services Conference, Athens, Georgia
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Professional and Civic Activities
Meredith is a certified public accountant with licenses to practice in Georgia and Florida. Meredith is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Georgia Society of CPAs, the
Government Finance Officers Association, and the Georgia Government Finance Officers Association
(GGFOA). She has served on the Ethics Committee of the Georgia Society of CPAs.

Grant Davis, CPA
Senior Manager
Grant Davis is a manager and a certified public accountant with Mauldin & Jenkins,
specializing in serving local and state governmental entities. His experience with
the Firm covers a variety of state and local governmental organizations. Grant
spends 100% of his time serving local governments. Grant would be in the field
during the entire conduct of the audit.
Years of Professional Experience and Years with Firm
Grant has over five years of experience, with Mauldin & Jenkins, in public accounting serving a wide
range of government clients.
List of Governmental Clients Served in the Last Three Years
Cities
 City of Beaufort, South Carolina
 City of Charleston, South Carolina
 City of Conyers
 City of Cordele
 City of Goose Creek, South Carolina
 City of Morrow
 City of Orangeburg, South Carolina
 City of Peachtree City
 City of Union City
 Town of Sharpsburg
 Town of Chapin, South Carolina
 Town of Clover, South Carolina
 Town of Summerville, South Carolina
Other Governmental Units
 Brunswick‐Glynn Joint Water & Sewer
Commission
 Central Midlands Regional Transit Authority
 Charleston Water System
 Clayton County Water Authority
 Greenwood Commissioners of Public Works
 Greer Commissioners of Public Works
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Counties:
Augusta‐Richmond County
Macon‐Bibb County
Beaufort County, South Carolina
Colleton County, South Carolina
Darlington County, South Carolina
Edgefield County, South Carolina
Henry County
Jones County
Lancaster County, South Carolina
Lincoln County
Oconee County, South Carolina
Rockdale County
Spalding County
Toombs County
















State Entities:
 Georgia Building Authority
 Georgia Ports Authority
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Mount Pleasant Waterworks
Santee Wateree Regional Transit Authority
Waccamaw Regional Transit Authority

Degree/Certifications and Audit Training
Grant graduated from Georgia Southern University with a Bachelor of Business Administration in
Accounting, and a Master of Accountancy.
Grant has obtained a significant amount of continuing professional education over the last three years
including:
 2017 South Carolina GFOA Fall Conference GASB Update ‐ Myrtle Beach, South Carolina
 2017 AICPA Governmental & Nonprofit Annual Update 2017‐2018 Edition
 2017 M&J GASB Update – Participant
 2017 M&J GASB No. 87 Leases – Participant
 2017 M&J Compliance with the Uniform Guidance – Participant
 2017 M&J Annual Governmental Conference – Athens, Georgia (3 days) – Instructor and
Participant
 2016 South Carolina GFOA Fall Conference GASB Update ‐ Myrtle Beach, South Carolina
 2016 M&J Annual Governmental Conference ‐ Lake Oconee (3 days) ‐ Instructor and Participant
 2015 Mauldin & Jenkins Annual Governmental Conference ‐ Athens, Georgia
 2015 AuditWatch University Level 4 ‐ Atlanta, Georgia
Professional and Civic Activities
Grant is a certified public accountant and a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Georgia Society of Certified Public Accountants.

Other Staff Resources (Technology Services and Fraud Examinations)
We have individuals with extensive experience and certifications relative to Information Systems
Technology as well Fraud Examinations. The following two (2) individuals are available to be of service
to the Commission should the need arise.

Randy Upchurch, CISA and CISSP
Director of Technology Services
Randy is a graduate of Tennessee Technological University in Cookeville,
Tennessee with a Bachelor of Science degree in accounting. He has 22 years of
experience, in information technology (IT) auditing and information security
operations and management. His industry experience includes state and local
governments, healthcare administration; life, health and disability insurance in
both the public and not‐for‐profit sectors including two Fortune 500 companies.
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He has extensive experience in SOX, SOC1, HIPAA / HITECH, and GLBA compliance program
implementation, testing and reporting. His technical expertise includes performing computer forensic
investigations, vulnerability and risk assessments and penetration testing of information systems using
both technical and social engineering techniques.
Randy holds the Certified Information Systems Auditor (CISA) designation from the Information Systems
Audit and Control Association (ISACA) and the Certified Information Systems Security Professional
(CISSP) designation from the International Information Systems Security Certification Consortium (ISC).

Kris Trainor, CPA and CFE
Certified Fraud Examiner
Kris Trainor is a partner with Mauldin & Jenkins. Kris received his BBA in
Accounting from Georgia Southern University. Since joining Mauldin & Jenkins
in 1995, Kris has worked primarily on audit and consulting engagements. His
experience ranges from fraud examinations, agreed‐upon procedures, internal
audits, financial statement audits, lender compliance, mortgage company
audits, governmental audits and loan servicing compliance audits. He also has
audit and inventory experience in the manufacturing industry.
Kris is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Georgia Society of
Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Certified Fraud Examiners, Beta Gamma Sigma, and Beta
Alpha Psi.

Other Staff Auditors & Accountants
Prior experience with government audits is as important for the staff as it is for management.
Experience in governmental accounting and auditing minimizes the amount of time the staff will require
to fully understand the complexities of the operations and financial accounting and reporting systems.
Prior experience also enables the staff to recognize problems early in the engagement. This, in turn,
allows the desired early consideration and resolution of problems. All staff assigned to the
Commission’s engagement will have prior experience serving government clients and/or will have
substantial government audit training. All staff assigned to the Commission will be on‐site throughout
the entire engagement.
We would like to stress the fact that the majority of our governmental staff work on state and local
governments 100% of their time. This reduces the “learning curve” on most all audits by reducing the
amount of “on‐site training” that occurs at most national accounting firms. This is very evident in our
proposed hours, which are typically much less than that of other firms. Our staff knows what is required
and how to get the work done efficiently and effectively. Our staff members understand the laws and
regulations specifically pertinent to governmental entities. We also normally have more high‐level
hours of service by our partners and managers (in the conduct of fieldwork) than the national firms,
thereby reducing redundancy and other audit engagement inequities. We bring our experience to the
field where timely decisions can be made.
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Affirmative Action
Mauldin & Jenkins is committed to the hiring of men and women and minorities representing any and all
races, ethnic origins, religious affiliations, codes and creeds. Mauldin & Jenkins policy is to prohibit
discrimination in all elements ofits operations. We are proud of our reputation as an equal employment
opportunity business. We have partners, as well as staff, in our firm representing a wide variety and
background.

Partner & Staff Continuity
We are comitted to providing continuity of our engagement team members. We recognize that this is
also an important factor for the Commission, as it limits the amount of retraining that needs to be
performed each year. Our staff retention rates of approximately 90% are considered to be among the
best in the profession (and much better than national firms). We are able to not only provide
consistency with the partners and managers on our engagement teams, but seniors and staff as well.

Retention > 90%
It is also our goal to minimize disruptions to the Commission by staffing the engagement so as to provide
continuity, both during and between audits. It is the Firm’s policy not to rotate key audit staff,
consultants or specialists off a multi‐year contracted audit engagement. Consequently, it is not
anticipated that any key audit personnel will be rotated away from the Commission’s annual audit. In
any business, however, turnover is inevitable. When this happens, we will provide resumes of
suggested replacements and any changes in key personnel would always be discussed timely with
Commission officials to their satisfaction.

Continuing Education of Partners and Staff
All members (i.e., partners) and staff of Mauldin & Jenkins receive substantial continuing education in
audit and accounting – typically over 100 hours of such study per year. As soon as a staff person
becomes a key ingredient to any type of niche service such as governmental audit, accounting and
consulting, specific continuing education is sought. A good example includes sending our staff with over
one (1) year of governmental audit experience to various GFOA and AICPA training for audit, accounting
and financial reporting courses.
All partners and staff serving in the governmental sector join together in July each year for the M&J
Annual Governmental Conference in which three (3) days worth of audit, accounting and financial
reporting training is provided.
Mauldin & Jenkins also provides week long audit efficiency training via Audit Watch every June to all
staff persons with less than five (5) years experience. Further, every July staff persons from various
levels of experience are provided with four (4) days of training relative to the conduct of Single Audits
and the preparation of Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports (CAFR’s).
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All staff associated with the annual audit of the Commission will exceed all the continuing professional
education requirements contained in the Yellow Book throughout the term of the agreement.

Planned Use of Outside Specialists
At this time, we do not plan on the use of any outside specialist. All work to be performed will be
performed by Mauldin & Jenkins partners and staff. Of course, certain staff has certain specialties, and
they will be called on as needed.
We do plan on using the results of reports provided to the Commission from their specialists. This
would include, when applicable, the following types of specialists:









Actuaries
Engineers
Health care providers
Third‐party administrators
Retirement plan administrators
Fixed asset valuation professionals
Bond underwriters and counsel
Consulting attorneys & outside counsel

Customer Service
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC is in the business of objectively providing audit, accounting and other attest
services to help clients achieve their legitimate personal, business and organization objectives. The Firm
strives to be positioned in the marketplace as a high quality public accounting and consulting firm
capable of proactively satisfying clients' attest, accounting, tax, consulting and business advisory needs
on an integrated basis. Our goal is to be the best CPA/consulting firm in the USA helping our clients
succeed.
The Firm places major reliance on the execution of a proactive client service strategy directed at
expanding services to existing clients and attracting new clients. We use a team approach to serve
clients in order to optimize each team member's skills and provide clients with the best possible balance
of services.
All of our Partners and staff are expected to conduct themselves in compliance with the firm guidelines
and the highest standards of professionalism in their respective field of expertise.
"Professionalism" in the accounting profession means integrity, objectivity, independence where
required and adherence to all professional standards, applicable laws and regulations. It requires
devotion to constantly improving the quality of professional service, and to resisting all pressures,
competitive or otherwise to compromise on principles, standards or quality. When providing attest
services, in particular, professionalism requires an understanding of the implications our work may have
on the public at large and a dedication to serving not only the client but also the best interests of the
broader public.
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Since the public relies on attest services we provide, our profession holds a unique position of public
trust. There is also a significant public interest in the way we perform accounting, tax, consulting and
business advisory services. To serve that larger public, we can never allow a client or Firm consideration
to interfere with our ability to maintain our commitment to the highest standards of professionalism.
Only by maintaining that fundamental commitment can we retain the respect of our clients, our fellow
professionals and the public at large.

Professional Performance
Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC demands integrity, objectivity, competence, and due care from all its personnel
in the performance of all client engagements, whatever their nature. We demand independence in fact
and appearance in all attest engagements and in other engagements where independence is required by
applicable laws, regulations and the practice standards of professional societies. We take steps to
assure that all personnel assigned to any engagement have the professional and specialized knowledge
needed to ably perform their responsibilities with regard to that engagement. We also assign reviewers
and consultants to complement that knowledge, when needed.
Our Firm is structured to provide leadership in achieving high quality professional performance within
the framework of individual accountability required by clients and our fellow professionals. The Firm
has established policies and procedures to assure proper planning and execution of professional
engagements, and to assure that decisions relating to our findings and recommendations are based on
the substance of issues, not their form. Accounting standards cannot deal with all possible situations,
but we urge our clients to adopt those accounting and reporting policies that we believe are the most
appropriate in the circumstances.
Our policies and procedures provide for, among other things, consultation on significant accounting and
auditing issues. We have designated individuals within the Firm whose opinions are to be sought on
significant technical ethical, legal and industry questions. These policies and procedures are designed to
assure that our clients receive only the best professional services and that we continually provide those
services in light of the best interests of the broader public. We expect our Partners and staff to identify
and resolve all‐important issues relevant to all engagements to which they may be assigned.
More specifically, to achieve high quality professional performance, and to comply with the membership
requirements of the AICPA Division for CPA Firms, Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC has adopted policies and
procedures that implement the quality control standards for the conduct of attest engagements
established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those policies and procedures
relate to the following elements of quality control, among other matters:
Independence, Integrity and Objectivity
Personnel Management
Acceptance and Continuance of Clients and Engagements
Engagement Performance
Monitoring
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The adequacy of the Firm's quality assurance system for our audit and accounting practice and our
compliance with that system are independently evaluated every three years through a peer review
conducted under the auspices of the AICPA Division for CPA Firms. The peer review report is available to
our clients and other interested parties. The Firm is registered with the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board and is subject to inspections every three years as a result thereof.

Compliance and Exceptions
As noted elsewhere within this proposal, we understand the work to be done as noted in the Request
for Proposal (the "RFP") and are in compliance with the required services. Additionally, as noted in
Exhibit B, we are listing no exceptions to the required services.

Utilization of JWSC Resources
During every audit, we perform initial planning procedures prior to our clients year end. Typically this
process involves updating or gaining our systems understandings of our client’s processes, procedures
and internal controls. In first year engagements, we also review reports and work already performed by
our client to facilitate being able to use that same information during our audit. In other words, we try
our best to utilize our clients reports and processes as much as possible and generally do not require our
clients to “reinvent the wheel” to be able to provide us with information. Once we have completed
these preliminary procedures, we prepare a detailed listing of items we would like to have during the
audit process during final fieldwork. This ensures an efficient audit and less headaches on our clients.
We would expect the Commission to have performed an annual close out process – that is to say that
bank accounts were reconciled, accounts receivables were reconciled to detailed listings, accounts
payables were reconciled to detailed listings, etc. Due to independence standards as well as new
auditing standards, it is imperative that all governmental entities take as much responsibility as possible
for their books and records prior to the audit.

Timetable for Completion
Upon being notified of obtaining the audit contract with the Commission, we would schedule with the
management of the Commission the timing and scheduling of events as needed. At this time, we do not
feel that specific scheduling should be considered fixed. All scheduling of the engagement would be
conducted at the Commission’s convenience. We are aware of the timetable set forth in the request for
proposal and fully intend and expect to satisfy the Commission’s time requirements.
The below timeframes are estimates based on our understandings with the Commission as to its desires.
We at Mauldin & Jenkins would be flexible in the timing of certain events as requested by the
Commission. As noted in the table below, we want to work with Commission personnel in an effective
manner. We intend to do a great deal of planning and tailoring of our approach from our initial visits.
We do not want our clients to feel that they have to reinvent the wheel every time we ask for
something. However, to make this process cost the Commission as little as possible (both in dollars and
their individual time), it is important to start only when ready and avoid auditing a moving target.
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Timing of Audit Process and Procedures
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Fiscal Year 2018 Audit Calendar

Segment I ‐ Planning and Interim Procedures
Ongoing consultation on major issues and developments throughout the
year, and greater discussions as year end approaches (such as new GASB
standards).
Meet management to discuss audit risks and scopes.
Engagement team planning meetings and performance of interim audit
procedures.
Gain understanding of significant processes and key controls.
Perform testing of key controls with goal of reducing substantive audit
testing.
Determine nature, timing and extent of substantive tests to be
performed.
Finalize audit plan based on results to‐date.
Segment II ‐ Final Audit Fieldwork Procedures
Perform substantive tests (detail testing of respective general
ledger/trial balance accounts, and final analytical procedures, key ratios
and relationship of financial data).
Conduct a final evaluation of risk assessments.
Conduct of progress meetings with management as needed and as often
as desired.
Preparation and delivery of draft financial report, reports, findings,
management letter comments, and any other deliverables.
Meeting with management to discuss draft deliverables and final
completion and presentation timeframes.
Segment III ‐ Review, Completion and Delivery Procedures
Upon management's review, delivery of financial report, internal control
reports, and management letter to management.
Presentation of audit deliverables to the governing board.
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Segment I ‐ Planning and Interim Procedures:



















Meet with the prior auditor to review prior year workpapers and
obtain appropriate prior year information;
 Obtain a signed engagement letter for the financial and compliance
audit;
 Meet with Commission management to discuss the scope of the
audit, timing of our work, and preparation of client schedules, and to
address any concerns;
Review previously issued and interim financial reports, comment letters, monitoring reports,
and other supporting workpapers;
Familiarize ourselves with the organizational structure of the Commission;
Read minutes of Commission meetings;
Review the Commission’s current year budget, as adopted and revised;
Review debt agreements, and other various documentation;
Gain an understanding of the Commission’s accounting policies and procedures, including the
financial and other management information systems utilized by the Commission;
Obtain an in‐depth knowledge of the EDP equipment, software and systems in use;
Perform analytical reviews to determine critical areas and assess risks;
Perform a preliminary evaluation of the internal control structure at the account and assertion
level;
Design and perform applicable tests of controls related to the financial statements and internal
accounts;
Make fraud inquiries and assessing the risks of material misstatement;
Obtain a list of cash, investment, receivables, debt, and selected revenue accounts for
confirmation purposes, as applicable;
Determine audit strategies for balance sheet and operating statement accounts based on audit
risk;
Obtain a preliminary schedule of expenditures of Federal awards to initiate planning and
internal control testing for the Single Audit;
Prepare year‐end audit programs;
Meet with appropriate Commission personnel to discuss the results of our preliminary audit
work.

Segment II ‐ Final Audit Fieldwork Procedures:







Conduct an analytical review of account balances based on closing
balances for which we will utilize analytical procedures (such as
reasonableness tests, trend analysis, and predictive tests) to reduce
substantive testing;
Test the valuation, restrictions and cut‐offs of cash and investment
balances, as applicable;
Test receivable cut‐offs and balances, including an analysis of
subsequent receipts and confirmation of significant accounts;
Test cut‐off and valuation of inventory;
Review and testing supporting documentation for the allowance for doubtful accounts, prepaid
items and other assets;
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Vouch capital asset additions and deletions, analyzing charges for appropriate accounting and
testing depreciation;
Test accounts payable cut‐offs and balances, including an analysis of subsequent disbursements;
Test accrued payroll, compensated absences, claims payable, OPEB payable, and other accrued
liability cut‐offs and balances;
Test debt balances and debt covenant compliance;
Test compliance with applicable laws and regulations;
Test the classification of net assets (unrestricted, restricted and net investment in capital
assets);
Perform analytical procedures and substantive testing of revenues and expenditures/expenses;
Obtain and audit the final schedule of expenditures of Federal awards;
Complete compliance tests for the major programs selected for testing as required by the
Federal Single Audit Act, as applicable;
Hold end of fieldwork exit conference.
Segment III ‐ Review, Completion and Delivery Procedures:













Review workpapers to ensure quality and thoroughness of audit
procedures;
 Summarize the results of audit procedures;
 Obtain attorney letters;
 Evaluate commitments, contingencies and subsequent events;
 Propose audit adjustments;
 Summarize and evaluating passed audit adjustments;
Evaluate compliance exceptions;
Review draft financial statements and related note disclosures;
Perform financial condition assessment procedures;
Prepare drafts of audit reports and management letter;
Deliver drafts of audit reports and letters to appropriate client officials;
Finalize all reports and management letter;
Obtain signed representation letter and the Commission’s approval of the final financial
statements;
Draft the Data Collection Form and obtaining the Commission’s approval;
Prepare and provide the Commission a PDF document of the audited financial statements;
Hold final exit conferences and presentations with appropriate Commission officials.

Mauldin & Jenkins believes that we are uniquely qualified to perform the audit of the Commission. In a
time in which very significant changes continue to be implemented in the Commission’s financial
reporting model, it is imperative for the Commission’s auditors to understand the Commission’s
financial reporting environment and processes. The team proposed to serve you is made up of
individuals who have significant experience in auditing local governments of various sizes in the
Southeast.
Our audit of the financial statements will be conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and will conform to the standards as set forth in the following:
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“Generally Accepted Auditing Standards” developed by the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (AICPA)
“Government Auditing Standards” issued by the Comptroller General of the United States
“Audits of State and Local Government Units” prepared by the State and Local Government
Committee and published by the AICPA

Our audit will include such tests of the accounting records and such other auditing procedures as we
consider necessary in the circumstances, which include, but are not limited to, those procedures
necessary to test compliance and to disclose non‐compliance with specified laws, regulations, and
contracts.
We will use Firm manuals specifically designed for governments to develop audit programs tailored to
the Commission which incorporate the requirements set forth above. We anticipate that these
procedures will enable us to express our professional opinion that the financial statements of the
Commission present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position and results of operations of the
various opinion units in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. If conditions are discovered which lead to the belief that material errors, defalcations, or other
irregularities exist which might prohibit us from expressing an unmodified opinion or if any other
circumstances are encountered that require extended services, we will promptly advise the Commission.
No extended services will be performed unless they are authorized in contractual agreement or in an
amendment to the agreement.
Upon notification of obtaining the audit contract with the Commission, we would determine with
Commission management a more detailed timetable for the audit process, and a detailed audit plan
leading up to a list of all schedules to be prepared by the Commission. Adequate supervision and lead
time will be provided by the auditor with respect to assistance needed by the Commission staff.

Additional First Year Requirements
Due to the fact that Mauldin & Jenkins served as the auditor for the Commission the previous three
years, our understanding of the nature and structure of the Commision would eliminate the typical first‐
time auditing procedures which other firms would be required to perform. This alone would
substantially reduce the amount of time required and up front aggravation for the Commission.
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Additional Information
Client Testimonials
The following represents sentiments and thoughts communicated by clients of Mauldin & Jenkins.
“The Commissioners of Mount Pleasant Waterworks would like to express their
sincere thanks and appreciation for the excellent audit of our financials for the
Fiscal Year 2014, especially being a first time audit….. We are looking forward to
next year’s audit.”
Clay Duffie, Mount Pleasant (SC) Waterworks General Manager
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

“Like most Finance departments we hate “breaking in” a new audit firm, however
Mauldin & Jenkins made the transition practically painless.”
Tim Schroer, Augusta ‐ Richmond County (GA) Consolidated Government,
Assistant Director of Finance
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

“The Mauldin & Jenkins’ staff are always professional and courteous, and they
keep us informed throughout the audit process. They are available throughout
the year to answer questions we may have. Their expertise in the governmental
accounting and reporting field is exceptional. The complimentary continuing
education classes they provide to their clients are timely and relevant.”
Gina Auld, CPA, City of Kennesaw (GA), Finance Director
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

High Percentage of Partner & Manager Involvement
Partner and manager involvement varies with different firms. At Mauldin & Jenkins, we believe it is
important for our partners and managers to be highly involved in the audit process, including fieldwork.
We bring our experience to the field. This is a value‐added concept most firms do not employ. That
being said, we believe it is important to note that our proposal includes the following:


Substantial Partner Hours as Compared to Total Hours.



Substantial Manager Hours as Compared to Total Hours.



Approximately 60% of all anticipated hours of service are partner and manager hours which
means we bring our experience to the field and not just the front end and back end of the
audits.
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Free Continuing Education for Governmental Clients
We provide free quarterly continuing education for all of our governmental clients. Each quarter, we
pick a couple of significant topics tailored to be of interest to governmental entities, and offer the
sessions several times per quarter at a variety of client provided locations resulting in greater
networking among our governmental clients. We normally see approximately 100 people per quarter.
We obtain the input and services of experienced outside speakers along with our in‐house professionals.
“I’ve been a CPA for 32 years. Today’s CPE class by Mauldin & Jenkins
has been the best of my career”. Terry Nall, CPA, City of Dunwoody (GA)
Council Member
“They are always on top of new accounting pronouncements and provide
training well before implementation deadlines. This is a very valuable
resource for our organization”. Laurie Puckett, CPA, CPFO, Gwinnett
County (GA), Accounting Director
Examples of subjects addressed in the past few quarters include:
 Accounting for Debt Issuances
 American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Updates
 Best Budgeting Practices, Policies and Processes
 CAFR Preparation (several times including a two (2) day hands‐on course)
 Capital Asset Accounting Processes and Controls
 Collateralization of Deposits and Investments
 Evaluating Financial and Non‐Financial Health of a Local Government
 GASB No. 51, Intangible Assets
 GASB No. 54, Governmental Fund Balance (subject addressed twice)
 GASB No. 60, Service Concession Arrangements (webcast)
 GASB No. 61, the Financial Reporting Entity (webcast)
 GASB No.’s 63 & 65, Deferred Inflows and Outflows (webcast)
 GASB No.’s 67 & 68, New Pension Standards (presented several occassions)
 GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application
 GASB No. 74 & 75, New OPEB Standards
 GASB No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures
 GASB Updates (ongoing and several sessions)
 Grant Accounting Processes and Controls
 Internal Controls Over Accounts Payable, Payroll and Cash Disbursements
 Internal Controls Over Receivables & the Revenue Cycle
 Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Compliance Issues, Primarily Payroll Matters
 Legal Considerations for Debt Issuances & Disclosure Requirements
 Policies and Procedures Manuals
 Presenting Financial Information to Non‐Financial People
 Segregation of Duties
 Single Audits for Auditees
 SPLOST Accounting, Reporting & Compliance
 Uniform Grant Reporting Requirements and the New Single Audit
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Governmental Newsletters
We produce newsletters tailored to meet the needs of governments.
The newsletters have addressed a variety of subjects and are intended
to be timely in their subject matter. The newsletters are authored by
Mauldin & Jenkins partners and managers, and are not purchased
from an outside agency.
The newsletters are produced and delivered periodically, and are intended to keep you informed of
current developments in the government finance environment. In the past several years, the following
topics have been addressed in our monthly newsletters:



























Accounting for Debt Issuances
American Recovery & Reinvestment Act (ARRA) Updates
Best Budgeting Practices, Policies and Processes
CAFR Preparation (several times including a two (2) day hands‐on course)
Capital Asset Accounting Processes and Controls
Collateralization of Deposits and Investments
Evaluating Financial and Non‐Financial Health of a Local Government
GASB No. 51, Intangible Assets
GASB No. 54, Governmental Fund Balance (subject addressed twice)
GASB No. 60, Service Concession Arrangements (webcast)
GASB No. 61, the Financial Reporting Entity (webcast)
GASB No.’s 63 & 65, Deferred Inflows and Outflows (webcast)
GASB No.’s 67 & 68, New Pension Stds. (presented several occasions)
GASB No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application
GASB No.’s 74 & 75, OPEB
GASB No. 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures
GASB Updates (ongoing and several sessions)
Grant Accounting Processes and Controls
Internal Controls Over Accounts Payable, Payroll and Cash Disbursements
Internal Controls Over Receivables & the Revenue Cycle
Internal Revenue Service (IRS) Issues, Primarily Payroll Matters
Legal Considerations for Debt Issuances & Disclosure Requirements
Policies and Procedures Manuals
Segregation of Duties
Single Audits for Auditees the Uniform Guidance for New Single Audits
SPLOST Accounting, Reporting & Compliance
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Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
During the course of serving our clients, we stress
the importance of timely and frequent
communication. Such communication takes place
throughout the audit and throughout the year, and
includes proactive communications regarding new
and upcoming accounting standards and auditing
standards, as well as, the availability to answer
questions and provide advice to the government.
We believe such communication is a key to providing timely value‐added service to our clients.
At the conclusion of the audit process, Mauldin & Jenkins prepares an Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis
(formerly called the Audit Agenda) which provides auditor insight and summarizes the audit process,
conclusions, and year end financial analysis all under one cover.
Elements of the Auditor’s Discussion & Analysis include the following:









Information about the Firm, and the respective personnel serving the
government;
Results of the audit and other matters which should be emphasized to the
governing board;
An overview of the governments year‐end financial results and auditor insights
relative to key financial elements of the government;
An understanding of the internal control / compliance audit reports and the
results of our testing of internal controls and compliance with laws and
regulations;
A summary of certain audit scopes and procedures utilized by Mauldin & Jenkins
during the audit process;
Documentation of certain required communications as required by auditing
standards;
If applicable, a summary of any findings (material weaknesses and / or
significant deficiencies) and management recommendations resulting from the
audit;
Practical information regarding upcoming new financial reporting and auditing
standards and pronouncements affecting the government; and,
 A summary of the free continuing education and newsletters made available
to the government during the past year.
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Closing
We appreciate the opportunity to continue to serve the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer
Commission. We believe Mauldin & Jenkins is the “right” firm for the Commission. Our experience and
knowledge in the governmental sector of accounting is vast and ever‐improving. We would be very
pleased to continue sharing our experience and understanding of governmental accounting and
operations for the benefit of the Commission.
We would greatly appreciate your recommending us for your continued audit, accounting, and financial
reporting needs. Should you or anyone at the Commission have any questions with regards to this
proposal or about Mauldin & Jenkins, please feel free to contact us.
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EXHIBIT “B”
PROPOSAL EXCEPTION FORM
The firm wishes to take exceptions to the following items:
Page

Item

Estimated Cost(s)

Explanation

No exceptions
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EXHIBIT “C”
FEE PROPOSAL
We are pleased to submit our all‐inclusive cost estimate to provide the professional financial and
compliance audit services for the Commission for years ended June 30, 2018 through 2020. The
proposed fees include consideration for the costs associated with travel, per diems, and all other out of
pocket expenses. These costs are listed as follows:

June 30, 2018
June 30, 2019
June 30, 2020

$

19,900
19,900
19,900

Important Notes to be Considered:
Note (1) – Unlimited Correspondence: It is Mauldin & Jenkins’ policy to not charge for simple
discussions and conversations that occur between the governmental entity and Mauldin & Jenkins that
are only simple discussions (i.e., a phone call to ask certain questions that do not require additional
research).
Note (2) – Free Periodic/Quarterly Continuing Education: As noted in our technical proposal, we
provide free quarterly continuing education classes to our clients. This could amount to approximately
$3,000 of annual savings for the Commission’s estimated finance department per person.
Note (3) – Additional Services: If it should become necessary for the Commission to request Mauldin &
Jenkins to provide any additional services (such as bond issurances, etc.), then such additional work shall
be performed only if set forth in an addendum to the contract between the Commission and Mauldin &
Jenkins.
Note (4) – No Hidden Fees or Costs: The pricing schedules contain all pricing information relative to
performance of the audit and preparation of the finanical statements as required by the Commission
including all reimbursement for travel, lodging, communications, etc. Our estimated number of hours
and the associated fee estimate indicated are based on our professional judgment and experience with
similar governmental entities. So long as there are no significant changes in the operations or the
number of major programs of the Commission and or the scope of services requested or significant
problems requiring additional time, our quoted fees will not change.
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EXHIBIT "D"
E‐VERIFY CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT AND AGREEMENT

Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance (GSIC) Act
The Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission and Contractor agree that
compliance with the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐91 and Rule 300‐10‐1‐.02 of the Rules of
the Georgia Department of Labor, as amended from time to time, are conditions of this
Agreement for the physical performance of services.
By executing this affidavit, the undersigned contractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13‐
10‐91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation which is contracting with the
Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission has registered with and is
participating in the federal work authorization program known as "E‐Verify," web address
https://e‐verify.uscix.gov/enroll/ operated by the United States Citizenship and Immigration
Services Bureau of the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of
newly hired employees, pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), P.L.
99‐603, as amended from time to time, and in accordance with the applicable provisions and
deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐91. The undersigned Contractor also verifies that
he/she/it is using and will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout
the contract period.
The undersigned Contractor agrees that, should it employ or contract with any subcontractor(s)
in connection with the physical performance of services pursuant to the contract with the
Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission, Contractor will secure from each
subcontractor(s) similar verification of compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐91 on the
Subcontractor Affidavit provided in Rule 300‐10‐01‐.08 or a substantially similar form.
Contractor further agrees the Contractor will advise the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water
and Sewer Commission of the hiring of a new subcontractor and will provide the Brunswick‐
Glynn Joint Water and Sewer Commission with a Subcontractor Affidavit attesting to the
Subcontractor's name, address, user identification number, and date of authorization to use the
Federal Work Authorization Program within five (5) days of the hiring and before the
Subcontractor begins working on the Project. Contractor also agrees to maintain all records of
such compliance for inspection by the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer
Commission at any time and to provide a copy of each such verification to the Brunswick‐Glynn
County Joint Water and Sewer Commission at the time the subcontractor(s) is retained to
perform such services.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC

Page 48

Dianne Smith Clark
July 20, 2018
July 20, 2018

Brunswick‐Glynn County
Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Proposal to Serve

EXHIBIT "E"
E‐VERIFY SUBCONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT AND AGREEMENT

Georgia Security and Immigration Compliance (GSIC) Act
The Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission and Subcontractor agree that
compliance with the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐91 and Rule 300‐10‐1‐.02 of the Rules of
the Georgia Department of Labor, as amended from time to time, are conditions of this
Agreement for the physical performance of services.
By executing this affidavit, the undersigned subcontractor verifies its compliance with O.C.G.A. §
13‐10‐91, stating affirmatively that the individual, firm, or corporation which is contracting with
a Contractor contracting with the
Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission has registered with and is
participating in the federal work authorization program known as "E‐Verify," web address
https://e‐verify.uscix.gov/enroll/ operated by the United States Citizenship and Immigration
Services Bureau of the United States Department of Homeland Security to verify information of
newly hired employees, pursuant to the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986 (IRCA), P.L.
99‐603, as amended from time to time, and in accordance with the applicable provisions and
deadlines established in O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐91. The undersigned Contractor also verifies that
he/she/it is using and will continue to use the federal work authorization program throughout
the contract period.
The undersigned Subcontractor agrees that, should it employ or contract with any
subcontractor(s) in connection with the physical performance of services pursuant to the
contract with the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer Commission, Subcontractor
will secure from each subcontractor(s) similar verification of compliance with O.C.G.A. § 13‐10‐
91 on the Subcontractor Affidavit provided in Rule 300‐10‐01‐.08 or a substantially similar form.
Subcontractor further agrees the Subcontractor will advise the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint
Water and Sewer Commission of the hiring of a new subcontractor and will provide the
Brunswick‐ Glynn Joint Water and Sewer Commission with a Subcontractor Affidavit attesting
to the Subcontractor's name, address, user identification number, and date of authorization to
use the Federal Work Authorization Program within five (5) days of the hiring and before the
Subcontractor begins working on the Project. Contractor also agrees to maintain all records of
such compliance for inspection by the Brunswick‐Glynn County Joint Water and Sewer
Commission at any time and to provide a copy of each such verification to the Brunswick‐Glynn
County Joint Water and Sewer Commission at the time the subcontractor(s) is retained to
perform such services.

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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Brunswick‐Glynn County
Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Proposal to Serve

NOTE: Completion of this form is not applicable for M&J as we do not and will not utilize
subcontractors for the performance of our services.

E‐Verify Employment Eligibility Verification User Identification Number

Date of Authorization to Use Federal Work Authorization Program

Name of Subcontractor

Name of JWSC Project

Title of Authorized Officer or Agent of Contractor

I hereby declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Signature and Printed Name of Authorized Officer or Agent

Date

Subscribed and sworn before me on this the _______ day of _______________, 2018.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires:

Mauldin & Jenkins, LLC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Board of Commissioners of the
Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Brunswick, Georgia
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water &
Sewer Commission (the “Commission”), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

300 MULBERRY STREET, SUITE 300 • POST OFFICE BOX 1877 • MACON, GEORGIA 31202-1877 • 478-464-8000 • FAX 478-464-8051 • www.mjcpa.com
MEMBERS OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Commission as of June 30, 2018, and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (on pages 3 through 10), the Schedule of Changes in the Commission’s Net Pension Liability and Related
Ratios (on page 33), and the Schedule of Commission Contributions (on page 34) be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the
basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide
us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 16, 2018, on
our consideration of the Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The purpose of that report
is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Commission’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Macon, Georgia
November 16, 2018
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission (the "Commission"), we offer
readers of the Commission’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Commission for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the financial statements and notes to the financial statements.

Proprietary Fund Accounting and Reporting
The Commission operates as a single fund in a business-like manner. Thus, the Commission uses the accrual
approach to account for and report financial transactions. This means that revenues are recognized as they are
earned and expenses are recognized as the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash inflows and
outflows. All assets and liabilities that are measurable and probable are included in the financial statements. The full
acquisition costs of all fixed assets are included in the Statement of Net Position and are depreciated over their
estimated useful life. Consequently, the Commission’s accounting practices generally resemble a commercial entity’s
approach.

Overview of the Financial Statements
Net Position: The following table reflects the overall financial condition of the Commission as of the last two fiscal
years.

$

Current assets
Restricted assets
Capital assets
Other long-term assets

2018
9,013,350
27,423,051
132,294,210
-

$

2017
8,034,128
26,365,334
131,611,633
240,049

168,730,611

166,251,144

2,467,856

806,242

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

7,559,138
38,470,651

8,475,266
41,025,862

Total liabilities

46,029,789

49,501,128

224,639

126,042

93,975,078
734,896
5,199,773
25,034,292

95,182,978
429,097
4,531,724
17,286,417

$ 124,944,039

$ 117,430,216

Total assets
Deferred outflows of resources

Deferred inflows of resources
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Restricted for Capital Projects
Unrestricted
Total net position
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following table reflects the balances of current and restricted assets for the last two fiscal years.
2018
Current Assets:
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of
allowance for uncollectibles
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses

$

2,058,182

2017
$

4,174,871
858,984
1,582,545
338,768

Restricted Assets:
Customer Deposits

1,901,167
3,787,820
757,872
1,260,881
326,388

$

9,013,350

$

8,034,128

$

3,129,515

$

2,862,055

Series 2010C Bond Funds:
Bond Construction Fund
Cost of Issuance Fund
Sinking Fund
Debt Service Reserve Fund
Capital Tap Fee Reserves:
City of Brunswick
Saint Simons Island
North Mainland
South Mainland
Operating, Repair and Replacement
and Capital Reserves:
$

436
116,566
618,329
5,916

803,127
103,375
325,722
3,820,518

1,502,441
1,232,897
1,965,427
499,008

1,271,991
715,457
1,969,628
574,648

18,352,516

13,918,813

27,423,051

$

26,365,334

The increase in capital assets is largely due to the completion of several capital infrastructure projects. The Repair
and Replacement Reserve and Special Purpose Local Sales Tax (SPLOST) were the source of funding for these
projects.
In December 2017, the JWSC defeased its Series 2010C Revenue Bonds and issued its 2017 Revenue Bonds. In
this transaction, the Debt Service Reserve on $3,820,518 was released and transferred to the Repair and
Replacement Reserve.
The Commission paid $849,334 in interest expense on its Series 2010C Revenue Bond and $451,738 on its 2017
Revenue Bond during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018. $42,626 in interest was paid on two capital leases.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position: The following table illustrates the history of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net position for the past two years.
2018
Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Connection fees
Other fees and charges
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Supplies
Electricity, natural gas and other fuel
Other costs
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Non-operating revenues (expenses)
Interest income
Other income
Intergovernmental revenue - SPLOST
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues (expenses), net
Change in net position
Total net position, beginning
Total net position ending

9,921,120
20,101,648
1,316,712
2,817,584
34,157,064

2017

$

9,136,689
17,243,678
3,706,279
3,148,852
33,235,498

11,210,033
5,175,843
3,817,760
1,729,116
1,195,739
6,867,572
29,996,063

9,865,925
4,392,850
5,058,560
1,725,352
1,179,038
5,825,561
28,047,286

4,161,001

5,188,212

36,574
92,349
4,532,439
(1,308,540)
3,352,822

24,188
61,615
1,126,447
(1,688,246)
(475,996)

7,513,823

4,712,216

117,430,216

112,718,000

$ 124,944,039

$ 117,430,216

Water and Sewer Revenues – As of June 30, 2018, the JWSC utilized a standardized billing structure for the former
City of Brunswick district and the former Glynn County districts. Customers are billed based on the infrastructure they
utilize for provision of water and/or sewer service for Debt Recovery Charges. Administrative and usage charges are
standardized throughout the service area. All meters are read electronically (radio read) each month and customers
receive a monthly statement based on that reading. As of June 30, 2018, the JWSC has 30,022 (29,341 on 6/30/17)
billable service addresses: 15,016 in Brunswick, 10,616 on Saint Simons Island, 3,475 in the North Mainland and 915
in the South Mainland.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The JWSC adjusted rates for the 2017-18 fiscal year. The rates for fiscal years 2017-18 were as follows:
Debt Recovery Charges
Brunswick District:
Debt Recovery Charge (Water) – $2.31 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Debt Recovery Charge (Sewer) – $2.76 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Glynn Districts:
Debt Recovery Charge (Water) – $1.62 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Debt Recovery Charge (Sewer) – $7.83 per Residential Equivalent Unit (REU)
Administrative Fees and Usage Charges
All Districts:
Administrative Base Charge (Water) – $7.57 per customer
Administrative Base Charge (Sewer) – $7.57 per customer
Water revenues - All water is metered and sold at a usage rate per thousand gallons on an increasing step rate. The
rates in place for the year ended June 30, 2018 were:
Water Usage Charges:
$1.54 per thousand gallons for 3,000 or less gallons
$2.07 per thousand gallons for 4,000 to 6,000 gallons
$2.58 per thousand gallons for 7,000 to 12,000 gallons
$3.20 per thousand gallons for 13,000 to 20,000 gallons
$4.84 per thousand gallons for 21,000 or more total gallons
Sewer charges are based on metered water usage at the rate of $7.15 per thousand gallons.
Connection fees (Capital tap fees) – A connection fee is required for all new connections onto the system. As of
June 30, 2018, the charge was $2,300.00 per REU and $4,500.00 per REU for water and sewer respectively. In
addition, if the JWSC is required to tap into the water or sewer main and run the service line to the customer’s property,
the JWSC charges a fee to recover the cost for doing so.
Other fees and charges – The JWSC charges 1.5% of arrears per month for late payments. Additionally, as in past
years, the JWSC maintains various fees for services and actions taken in collection efforts. Other revenues such as
tower rentals and inspection fees are also included in this line item.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Personnel Services – This is the cost of the JWSC for the salaries and wages of personnel and the related payroll
taxes and benefits provided. The JWSC employs 163 full-time employees in 10 departments and divisions.
Administration and management includes the Office of the Director, Planning and Construction, Purchasing, and the
Finance departments with 55 employees. Facilities maintenance employs 5 positions. Wastewater operations include
the Systems Pumping and Maintenance, and Wastewater Treatment divisions with 78 employees. The Water
Production and Water Distribution divisions employ 25 people. The JWSC provides eligible employees with health
insurance, on a participatory basis, long-term disability insurance and a defined benefit retirement plan administered
by the Georgia Municipal Association. The JWSC is fully insured for workers compensation and is self-insured for
unemployment insurance. Salaries and wages increased for the fiscal year as the result of the implementation of a
COLA adjustment. All JWSC employees received a minimum salary increase of 2.74% in July 2017. The
implementation of an annual COLA is designed to make the JWSC competitive in attracting and retaining employees.
A COLA will be implemented for the first full pay period of July annually in an amount equal to the CPI-U. The pay
scale of the JWSC will be adjusted by an equal percentage.
Contractual Services – This cost consist of services that are required for the functions and operations of the JWSC
which are necessary to purchase from outside sources, such as legal, auditing and insurance services. Purchasing
other types of services, such as personnel administration and printing, inserting and mailing of bills has been found to
be the most cost effective by the JWSC.
Supplies – These costs consist of the following:

$

Chemicals
Infrastructure and Pump Maintenance
Office, Computer and Lab Supplies
Small Equipment
Uniforms
Hurricane Preparedness

$

2018
701,196
2,389,208
254,952
201,476
127,436
143,492
3,817,760

$

$

2017
1,103,580
3,372,181
290,318
142,097
150,384
5,058,560

Depreciation – This is the JWSC’s second largest expense line item. It continues to grow each year as the JWSC
continues to complete construction projects and bring them on line. Capital Assets, before depreciation, increased by
$5.087 million from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018.
Interest Income – Funds are invested as permitted in accordance with Chapter 83 of Title 36 of the Official Code of
Georgia, which establishes guidelines for local government investment procedures. As interest rates have continued
to increase, so has our interest income.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Interest Expense – Interest expense consists of the interest on the JWSC Series 2010C Revenue Bond, the Series
2017 Revenue Bond and two capital leases. Fiscal charges for the year ended June 30, 2018, were paid in the
amount of $500.
Capital Contributions – Capital contributions are received by the dedication of privately constructed infrastructure to
the JWSC and the JWSC’s acceptance of that infrastructure. There were no contributions for the year ended June 30,
2018. In all cases, the assets are recorded at fair market value and are capitalized by the JWSC.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets:
The JWSC’s investment in capital assets as of June 30, 2018, amounts to $132,819,250 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land and easements, buildings, water wells, elevated storage
tanks, wastewater treatment plants, system improvements, vehicles and equipment. A summary of the major
infrastructure is as follows:
Brunswick
District
1
157
38
3,475
60
Brunswick
District
7
6
6
257
1,612

Wastewater treatment facilities
Miles of gravity sewer lines
Miles of forced main sewer lines
Sewer manholes
Sewer lift stations

Water wells
Elevated water storage towers
Water pumping facilites
Miles of water lines
Fire hydrants

Glynn
District
2
159
69
4,368
93
Glynn
District
16
4
6
289
2,648

Total
3
316
107
7,843
153
Total
23
10
12
546
4,260

Debt Administration:
As an entity created by an act of the General Assembly of the State of Georgia, long-term borrowing by the JWSC is
provided through Revenue Bonds issued by the JWSC and loans from the Georgia Environmental Finance Authority
(GEFA).
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On June 30, 2010, the JWSC issued $50,125,000 of Revenue Bonds at an average yield of 4.389086% and a final
maturity of 2035. The proceeds from these bonds were used primarily to retire the outstanding water and sewer debt
of the City of Brunswick ($11,365,000) and of Glynn County ($32,780,000) to enable transfer of ownership of the
respective governments water and sewer assets to the JWSC. The JWSC borrowed an additional $5,000,000 to
acquire an administrative facility and for other infrastructure projects. Other costs paid from the bond proceeds at
issuance amounted to $980,000.
On December 27, 2017, the JWSC issued $36,364,000 of Revenue Bonds at an average yield of 2.904% and a final
maturity of June 1, 2035. The proceeds from these bonds were used to defease Series 2010C Revenue Bonds of the
JWSC and to pay the related costs of issuance associated with the 2017 Bond. No additional funds were borrowed
in this issue.
The Series 2010C Revenue Bonds were the first debt issue by the JWSC. The initial ratings for this insured issue are
AAA from Standard & Poor’s and Aa3 from Moody’s. These ratings were unchanged at the issuance of the 2017
Revenue Bonds.
The 2017 Revenue Bonds include a Rate Covenant containing the requirement that Net Revenues are at least equal
to 1.10 times Debt Service in the then current Sinking Fund Year. For the current fiscal year this debt coverage
ratio has been computed to be 2.92 based on total revenues and 2.58 on revenues net of connection fees as
follows:
Income Before Contributions
Add: Depreciation Expense
Amortization of Bond Insurance
Bond Interest (before amortization of premium)

$

$

7,513,823
6,867,572
6,668
1,247,517
15,635,580
(3,217)
(4,532,439)
11,099,924

$

7,513,823
6,867,572
6,668
1,247,517
15,635,580
(3,217)
(4,532,439)
(1,316,712)
9,783,212

$

3,798,669

$

3,798,669

Less: Interest on Construction Fund
Intergovernmental revenue - SPLOST
Connection fees

2017 Debt Service
Debt Coverage Ratio

2.92
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$

2.58

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Currently Known Conditions Affecting Future Operations
In March 2016, an update of the Water and Sewer Master Plan was completed. This update identified numerous
repair, replacement and expansion projects necessary throughout Glynn County and the City of Brunswick.
Review of the results of the master plan and internal assessments of capacities available, primarily at sewer lift stations
and conveyance facilities, identified areas that have severely limited capacity for expansion. This resulted in the
JWSC limiting new users to access the wastewater systems. Although capital improvements added capacity during
fiscal year 2018 some restrictions still remain.
Capital projects are planned, or underway, to increase capacity in areas identified to have the greatest growth
potential. Other areas may have incremental increases in capacity through such methods as increasing pump sizes
or adding additional pumping capacity. The JWSC has also increased staffing in construction management and
planning areas to facilitate completion of construction projects.
The implementation of formal asset management program for all divisions continues to move forward and is gaining
momentum toward full implementation. This program will facilitate greater operational efficiencies, provide clear asset
condition tracking and therefore greater understanding of proactive maintenance and reinvestment needs to allow the
JWSC to set priorities and allocate resources more effectively. The JWSC plans to consolidate operations to improve
resiliency and operational efficiencies.
The JWSC has projects included in the Glynn County SPLOST in the amount of $15,000,000.00. The remainder of
the funding for the necessary improvements will be obtained through a combination of debt financing and
developer/builder contributions. Through June 30, 2018, the JWSC has, or will, receive a total of $5,658,886 from
SPLOST.
The JWSC increased user rates, effective July 1, 2018. Fees for services provided beyond providing basic water and
sewer use have been revised to more fully recapture the cost of those services. Additionally, the JWSC changed its
Rate Structure to include a base amount of water and sewer use as a fixed monthly charge.
Rate increases have tended to be offset to some extent by conservation in response to increased rates and by the
increased use of water efficient appliances and fixtures.

Further Information
This financial overview is designed to provide readers with a general overview of the JWSC’s finances, and to show
accountability. If you have questions or would like further information about this financial report, you may contact
officials at the JWSC located at 1703 Gloucester St., Brunswick, Georgia 31520.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for uncollectibles
Intergovernmental receivable
Inventory
Prepaid expenses
Restricted cash

$

Total current assets

2,058,182
4,174,871
858,984
1,582,545
338,768
27,423,051
36,436,401

Non-current assets
Capital assets:
Nondepreciable assets
Depreciable assets
Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

9,206,207
242,837,132
(119,749,129)
132,294,210

Total assets

168,730,611

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred charges on refunding
Pension

1,546,448
921,408

Total deferred outflows of resources

$

11

2,467,856

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payable from current assets:
Accounts payable
Retainage payable
Compensated absences payable
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Current portion of capital leases payable
Total current liabilities payable from current assets

$

Payable from restricted assets:
Accrued interest payable
Customer deposits payable
Current portion of revenue bonds payable
Total current liabilities payable from restricted assets

1,231,726
282,104
206,802
358,340
418,877
2,497,849
100,766
2,980,523
1,980,000
5,061,289

Total current liabilities

7,559,138

Long-term liabilities
Revenue bonds payable, net
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences payable
Net pension liability
Total long-term liabilities

34,384,000
1,542,607
169,553
2,374,491
38,470,651

Total liabilities

46,029,789

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension

224,639

Total deferred inflows of resources

224,639

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Unrestricted

93,975,078
734,896
5,199,773
25,034,292

Total net position

$ 124,944,039

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Operating revenues:
Charges for services:
Water sales
Sewer sales
Connection fees
Other fees and charges
Total operating revenues

$

Operating expenses:
Personnel services
Contractual services
Supplies
Electricity, natural gas, and other fuel
Other costs
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses

9,921,120
20,101,648
1,316,712
2,817,584
34,157,064
11,210,033
5,175,843
3,817,760
1,729,116
1,195,739
6,867,572
29,996,063

Operating income

4,161,001

Non-operating revenues (expenses):
Interest income
Other non-operating income
Intergovernmental revenue - SPLOST
Interest expense and fiscal charges
Total non-operating revenues, net

36,574
92,349
4,532,439
(1,308,540)
3,352,822

Change in net position

7,513,823
117,430,216

Total net position, beginning of year

$ 124,944,039

Total net position, end of year

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Net cash provided by operating activities

$ 33,770,013
(14,540,034)
(11,173,587)
8,056,392

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of capital assets
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of revenue bonds refunding
Principal payments on long-term borrowings
Interest paid on long-term borrowings
Intergovernmental receipts - SPLOST
Net cash used in capital and related financing activities

(7,562,149)
104,349
36,364,000
(37,926,510)
(2,289,251)
4,431,327
(6,878,234)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Net cash provided by investing activities

36,574
36,574

Net increase in cash

1,214,732

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

28,266,501

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

$ 29,481,233

Classified as:
Cash
Restricted assets, cash

$

2,058,182
27,423,051
$ 29,481,233

See Notes to Financial Statements.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME TO NET CASH PROVIDED
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase in accounts receivable
Increase in allowance for bad debts
Increase in inventory
Increase in prepaid expenses
Increase in deferred outflows of resources
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses
Decrease in retainage payable
Decrease in customer deposits payable
Increase in accrued compensated absences
Increase in net pension liability
Increase in deferred inflows of resources
Net cash provided by operating activities

$

6,867,572
(659,638)
272,587
(321,664)
(12,380)
(1,661,614)
(654,058)
(27,424)
(74,573)
16,216
51,770
98,597
$

See Notes to Financial Statements.

15

4,161,001

8,056,392

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER AND SEWER COMMISSION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Reporting Entity
The Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission (the “Commission”) was established
by an act of the Georgia State Assembly in 2006 and approved by referendum on July 18, 2006. The
Commission is governed by a seven-member board of Commissioners. The Act creating the
Commission was amended in 2012 to change the structure of the governing body. As of January 1,
2013, the governing body consists of: one member appointed by the City of Brunswick and one
member appointed by Glynn County from their respective Boards of Commissioners; three members
selected by the Grand Jury of Glynn County, and two members elected in the state-wide general
election. The Commission provides and accounts for the provision of water and sewer services to the
residents of Glynn County and the City of Brunswick.
In evaluating how to define the government for financial reporting purposes, management has
considered all potential component units. The decision to include a potential component unit in the
reporting entity was made by applying the criteria set forth in Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, as amended by GASB Statement 39,
Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, and GASB Statement 61, The
Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, which defines a primary government as an entity with a
governing body elected in a general election, and which is legally separate and fiscally independent.
Any entity that does not meet the above criteria is potentially a component unit of a primary
government.
A component unit is a legally separate entity for which a primary government is financially accountable
by virtue of the fact that it both appoints the governing board and is able to impose its will on the
component unit, or the fact that it provides financial benefits or imposes a financial burden on the
primary government.
Based on the above requirements, there are no entities which meet the criteria detailed above for
inclusion with the Commission's financial statements as component units, nor is the Commission
considered a component unit.

Fund Accounting
The Commission uses one fund to report on its financial position and the results of its operations.
Fund accounting is designed to demonstrate legal compliance and to aid financial management by
segregating transactions related to certain government functions and activities.
A fund is a separate accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts. The fund presented in
this report is a Proprietary Fund Type - Enterprise Fund. Enterprise Funds are used to account for
those operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the
board has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net income is
necessary for management accountability.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Measurement Focus
The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. Proprietary funds are accounted for on the flow of economic resources measurement focus
and use the accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, all assets and liabilities
associated with the operation of these funds are included in the statement of net position. Net position
is segregated into net investment in capital assets and restricted and unrestricted net position
components. Proprietary fund operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases
(expenses) in total net position. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
of the Commission are charges for goods and services provided. Operating expenses of the
Commission include the cost of these goods and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation
on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Basis of Accounting
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Commission exclusively
follows the standards set forth by the GASB for its proprietary operations.

Management Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Cash and Investments
Cash includes amounts in demand deposits as well as short-term investments with a maturity date
within three months of the date acquired by the Commission.
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Commission considers all highly liquid investments
(including restricted assets) with an original maturity date of three months or less, and customer
deposits to be cash equivalents.

Customer Accounts Receivable
Customer accounts receivable include billed, but uncollected amounts and unbilled receivables based
upon a pro rata amount of subsequent monthly billings. Allowances for doubtful accounts are
maintained based on historical results adjusted to reflect current conditions.

Inventories
Inventories of materials and supplies are stated at cost, which approximates market, using the firstin, first-out (FIFO) method. The Commission uses the consumption method of accounting for
inventory, in that as materials are purchased, they are coded to inventory and then as subsequently
used, they are expensed.

Restricted Assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents consist of three restricted fund types. Amounts recorded in this
category include funds received in payment of customer deposits and refunds of customer deposits,
funds received in payment of capital tap fees, and certain proceeds from the issuance of the
Commission's revenue bonds, as well as certain resources set aside for their repayment, and are
classified as restricted assets on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond
covenants.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Capital Assets
Capital assets are carried at cost. Donated capital assets are recorded at their acquisition value.
These assets are depreciated over the estimated useful life using the straight-line method. The
Commission defines its capitalization policy as assets costing $5,000 and having an estimated useful
life of greater than three years.
Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.
Interest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets is reflected in the capitalized value
of the asset constructed, net of interest earned on the invested proceeds over the same period.
Capital assets are depreciated using the straight line method over the following useful lives:

Asset Classification
Buildings
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles

Years
10-50
5-50
2-25
5

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then. The Commission reported four items
that qualify for reporting in this category. Three items relate to their pension as deferred outflows of
resources during the year ended June 30, 2018, under the heading “pension.” Experience losses
result from periodic studies by the Commission’s actuary, which adjust the net pension liability for
actual experience for certain trend information that was previously assumed, for example the
assumed dates of retirement of plan members. These experience losses are recorded as deferred
outflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the expected remaining service
lives of the plan members. Changes in actuarial assumptions, which adjust the net pension liability,
are recorded as deferred outflows of resources and are amortized into pension expense over the
expected remaining service lives of plan members. Additionally, any contributions made by the
Commission to the pension plan before year end, but subsequent to the measurement date of the
Commission’s net pension liability are reported as deferred outflows of resources. The fourth item
relates to their deferred charge on refunding as deferred outflows of resources under the heading
“deferred charges on refunding.” This results from the difference in the carrying value of the refunded
debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of
the refunded debt or the refunding debt.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)
In addition to liabilities, the Statement of Net Position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of fund balance that applies to future period(s) and so will not be
recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Commission reported one item
related to their pension as deferred inflows of resources during the year ended June 30, 2018, under
the heading “pension.” In addition, the difference between projected and actual earnings on pension
plan investments is deferred and amortized against pension expense over a five-year period, resulting
in recognition as a deferred inflow of resources.

Compensated Absences
The liability for compensated absences has been accrued and reported in the Statement of Net
Position. The Commission permits employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick
pay benefits. Employees may carry over a maximum of 400 hours of vacation time from year to year.
Accumulated vacation benefits will be liquidated in future years as employees elect to use them or
will be paid upon termination of employment. Accumulated sick pay benefits are not payable upon
termination of employment. In the normal course of business, all payments of accumulated benefits
will be funded by revenues of the year in which the benefits are paid. All compensated absences are
accrued when earned by employees. An employee may accrue an unlimited amount of sick leave.
Sick leave may be taken only for personal illness or illness of an immediate family member.

Long-Term Obligations
Long-term debt and other obligations financed by the Commission are reported as liabilities in the
Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as deferred refunding costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable
are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Issuance costs are expensed in the
year incurred.
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NOTE 1.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Net Position
Net position is classified and displayed in three components within the Statements of Net Position.
These three classifications are as follows:
a) Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvements of those assets.
b) Restricted net position consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by
(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
c) Unrestricted net position consists of all other net position that does not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

NOTE 2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
Total deposits and investments as of June 30, 2018, are summarized as follows:
Cash
Restricted cash:
Customer deposits
Series 2010C bonds
Capital tap fee reserves
Operating, repair and replacement
and capital reserves
Total restricted cash

$

Cash deposited with financial institutions

$
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2,058,182
3,129,515
741,247
5,199,773
18,352,516
27,423,051
29,481,233

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2.

DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit Risk
State statutes authorize the Commission to invest in obligations of the State of Georgia or other states;
obligations issued by the U.S. government; obligations fully insured or guaranteed by the U.S.
government or by a government agency of the United States; obligations of any corporation of the
U.S. government; prime bankers’ acceptances; the local government investment pool established by
state law; repurchase agreements; and obligations of other political subdivisions of the State of
Georgia.
Interest Rate Risk
The Commission does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.
Custodial Credit Risk – Deposits
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral
securities that are in the possession of an outside party. As of June 30, 2018, the Commission did
not have any deposits which were uninsured or under collateralized as defined by GASB
pronouncements.

NOTE 3.

RECEIVABLES
Receivables, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, consisted of the following
at June 30, 2018:
Receivables
Less allowance for uncollectibles
Net total receivables

$
$
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6,152,901
(1,978,030)
4,174,871
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NOTE 4.

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, is as follows:
Beginning
Balance

Capital assets, not
being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Total
Capital assets, being
depreciated:
Buildings
Site improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and
equipment
Vehicles
Total
Less accumulated
depreciation for:
Buildings
Site improvements
Infrastructure
Machinery and equipment
Office furniture and
equipment
Vehicles
Total
Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net
Total capital assets, net

$

1,921,037
5,131,260
7,052,297

Additions

$

7,178,815
7,178,815

Transfers

$

Ending
Balance

Deletions

(5,012,905)
(5,012,905)

$

(12,000)
(12,000)

$

1,909,037
7,297,170
9,206,207

3,985,731
92,792
216,586,431
10,110,765

164,917
113,494

5,012,905
-

(233,627)

4,150,648
92,792
221,599,336
9,990,632

3,490,067
3,472,174
237,737,960

48,521
56,402
383,334

5,012,905

(63,440)
(297,067)

3,538,588
3,465,136
242,837,132

(365,903)
(3,755)
(101,844,862)
(6,611,757)

(113,651)
(1,575)
(5,120,271)
(863,542)

-

233,627

(479,554)
(5,330)
(106,965,133)
(7,241,672)

(1,936,534)
(2,415,813)
(113,178,624)

(502,575)
(265,958)
(6,867,572)

-

63,440
297,067

(2,439,109)
(2,618,331)
(119,749,129)

124,559,336

(6,484,238)

5,012,905

-

$ 131,611,633

$

694,577
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$

-

$

(12,000)

123,088,003
$ 132,294,210
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
The following is a summary of long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Revenue bonds payable
Premium on revenue bonds
Total bonds payable
Capital leases payable
Compensated absences
Net pension liability
Total long-term liabilities

Beginning
Balance

Additions

Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

$ 37,515,000
1,164,306
38,679,306

$ 36,364,000
36,364,000

$ (37,515,000)
(1,164,306)
(38,679,306)

$36,364,000
36,364,000

$ 1,980,000
1,980,000

2,372,994

-

(411,510)

1,961,484

418,877

360,139

109,278

(93,062)

376,355

206,802

2,322,721

1,077,665

(1,025,895)

2,374,491

-

$ 43,735,160

$ 37,550,943

$ (40,209,773)

$41,076,330

$ 2,605,679

Revenue Bonds
In December 2017, the Commission issued Refunding Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 in the amount
of $36,364,000. The Series 2017 bonds were issued to provide funds to refund (advance refunding)
all of the Commission’s 2010C Revenues Bonds. The net proceeds were deposited in an irrevocable
trust with an escrow agent to provide funds for the future debt service payment on the refunded bonds.
As a result, the Series 2010C bonds are considered defeased and the liability for those bonds has
been removed from the statement of net position. The advance refunding of the Series 2010C bonds
resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of
$1,618,208. The difference, reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deferred outflow
of resources, is being charged to expense through the year 2035 using the effective interest method.
The refunding decreased the total debt service payments over the next 18 years by $6,492,690 and
produced an economic gain of $2,659,689. Principal payments are due each year on June 1,
beginning June 1, 2019. Interest payments are due each December 1 and June 1, beginning June 1,
2018. The bonds are secured by a pledge and lien on revenues of the water and sewer systems and
yield 2.904% interest.
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Revenue Bonds (Continued)
Debt service requirements to maturity on the revenue bonds are as follows:
Fiscal Year Payable
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2035
Total

Principal
1,980,000
2,528,000
2,031,000
2,087,000
2,145,000
9,610,000
11,085,000
4,898,000
$ 36,364,000
$

Interest
1,056,011
998,511
925,098
866,118
805,512
3,174,072
1,695,384
214,431
$ 9,735,137
$

Total
3,036,011
3,526,511
2,956,098
2,953,118
2,950,512
12,784,072
12,780,384
5,112,431
$ 46,099,137
$

Capital Leases
The Commission has entered into lease agreements as lessee for financing the acquisition of certain
assets. These lease agreements qualify as capital leases for accounting purposes and, therefore,
have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of the date of their
inception.
The following is an analysis of machinery and equipment under capital leases as of June 30, 2018:
Machinery and equipment
Less: accumulated depreciation
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$

2,402,884
(715,800)

$

1,687,084
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NOTE 5.

LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)
Capital Leases (Continued)
The following is a schedule of the future minimum lease payments under these capital leases, and
the present value of the net minimum lease payments at June 30, 2018:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024
Total minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

NOTE 6.

$

454,136
454,136
454,136
454,136
140,575
105,429
2,062,548
(101,064)

$

1,961,484

NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS AND RESTRICTED NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets – The balances that make up the Commission’s net investment
in capital assets at June 30, 2018, are as follows:
Net capital assets

$ 132,294,210

Unspent bond proceeds
Bond debt service reserve
Less: Capital related debt

436
5,916
(38,325,484)

Net investment in capital assets

$

93,975,078

Restricted for Debt Service – These funds are set aside by the Commission for the retirement of
future debt payments in accordance with bond requirements.
Restricted for Capital Projects – These funds are capital tap fees collected by the Commission for
the improvement of the water and sewer system infrastructure.
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NOTE 7.

OPERATING LEASES
The Commission, as lessor, leases certain space as a part of its administration building to tenants for
varying terms, typically in the form of five-year periods, under leases accounted for as operating
leases. Revenues are recorded when earned.
Minimum future rentals to be received under operating leases are as follows:
Fiscal Year Ending
June 30,
2019

NOTE 8.

$
$

88,000
88,000

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
Plan Description
The Commission, as authorized by the Board of Commissioners, has established a non-contributory
defined benefit pension plan (The Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Retirement Plan), covering substantially all of the Commission’s employees. The Commission’s
pension plan is administered through the Georgia Municipal Employee Benefit System (GMEBS), an
agent multiple-employer pension plan administered by the Georgia Municipal Association. The Plan
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and death benefits to
plan members and beneficiaries. Benefits are provided by the Plan whereby retirees receive between
1% and 1.75% multiplied by the average of the five highest years of regular earnings multiplied by the
total credited years of service. The Board of Commissioners, in its role as the Plan sponsor, has the
governing authority to establish and amend from time to time, the benefits provided and the
contribution rates of the Commission and its employees. The Georgia Municipal Association issues
a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for GMEBS. That report may be obtained at www.gmanet.com or by writing to Georgia
Municipal Association, Risk Management and Employee Benefit Services, 201 Pryor Street, NW,
Atlanta, Georgia 30303, or by calling (404) 688-0472.

27

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Plan Description (Continued)
Plan Membership. As of January 1, 2017, pension plan membership consisted of the following:
Inactive plan members or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits
Inactive plan members entitled to but not receiving benefits
Active plan members
Total

12
25
121
158

Contributions. The Plan is subject to minimum funding standards of the Georgia Public Retirement
Systems Standards law. The Board of Trustees of GMEBS has adopted a recommended actuarial
funding policy for the plan which meets state minimum requirements and will accumulate sufficient
funds to provide the benefits under the plan. The funding policy for the Plan, as adopted by the
Commission’s Board, is to contribute an amount equal to the actuarially recommended contribution
rate. This rate is based on the estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earned
by plan members during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission's contribution rate was 8.01% of annual payroll.
Commission contributions to the Plan were $493,084 for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Net Pension Liability of the Commission
The Commission’s net pension liability was measured as of September 30, 2017. The total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of
January 1, 2018.
Actuarial assumptions. The total pension liability in the January 1, 2018 actuarial valuation was
determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement:
Inflation

2.75%

Salary increases

3.25% - 8.25%, including inflation

Investment rate of return

7.50%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy Mortality Table with gender-distinct
rates, set forward two years for males and one year for females.
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NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission (Continued)
The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period January 1, 2010-June 30, 2014.
Salary increase adjustments were assumed to be 3.25% although the Plan allowance for annual cost
of living adjustment is variable, as established by the Commission Board, in an amount not to exceed
8.25%.
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a buildingblock method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns,
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.
These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan's target asset allocation as of September 30, 2017, are summarized in the following
table:

Target
Allocation
45%
20%
10%
5%
20%
-%
100%

Asset Class
Domestic equity
International equity
Real estate
Global fixed income
Domestic fixed income
Cash

Long-Term
Expected Real
Rate of Return*
6.71%
7.71%
5.21%
3.36%
2.11%

* Rates shown are net of the 2.75% assumed rate of inflation.

Discount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.50%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be
made at the current contribution rate and that Commission contributions will be made at rates equal
to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate
of return on pension plan investments was applied to all of the projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission (Continued)
Changes in the Net Pension Liability of the Commission. The changes in the components of the net
pension liability of the Commission for the year ended June 30, 2018, were as follows:

Balances at 6/30/17
Changes for the year:
Service Cost
Interest
Differences between expected
and actual experience
Assumption changes
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions
Administrative expense
Net Changes
Balances at 6/30/18

Total Pension
Liability
(a)
$
5,882,583

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position
(b)
$
3,559,862

Net Pension
Liability
(a) - (b)
$
2,322,721

290,707
452,681

-

290,707
452,681

227,855
81,397
-

466,145
559,750

(83,071)
969,569
6,852,152

(83,071)
(25,025)
917,799
4,477,661

$

$

227,855
81,397
(466,145)
(559,750)

$

25,025
51,770
2,374,491

The required schedule of changes in the Commission’s net pension liability and related ratios
immediately following the notes to the financial statements presents multi-year trend information
about whether the value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the total
pension liability.
Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate. The following presents the
net pension liability of the Commission, calculated using the discount rate of 7.50%, as well as what
the Commission's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1percentage-point lower (6.50%) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.50%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease
(6.50%)
Commission's net pension liability

$
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3,398,795

Current
Discount Rate
(7.50%)
$

2,374,491

1% Increase
(8.50%)
$

1,523,701
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NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Net Pension Liability of the Commission (Continued)
Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future, and actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future.
Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective. Calculations are based on the substantive plan
in effect as of September 30, 2017, and the current sharing pattern of costs between employer and
employee.
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Commission recognized a pension expense of $528,285. At
June 30, 2018, the Commission reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
Deferred
Outflows of
Resources
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes in assumptions
Difference between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan
investments
Commission contributions subsequent
to the measurement date
Total

$

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

481,827
69,768

$

-

$

369,813
921,408

12,024

212,615

$

224,639

Commission contributions subsequent to the measurement date of $369,813 are reported as deferred
outflows of resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ending June 30, 2019.
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NOTE 8.

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions (Continued)
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
Year ending June 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
Total

NOTE 9.

$

$

49,638
64,202
24,527
44,998
99,412
44,179
326,956

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Commission is exposed to various risks of loss related to: torts; theft of assets; damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The Commission carries
commercial insurance for these risks of loss, as well as other risks of loss such as workers’
compensation insurance and general property and liability insurance.

NOTE 10.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
At June 30, 2018, in addition to the liabilities enumerated on the balance sheet, the Commission also
had contractual commitments on uncompleted construction contracts in the amount of approximately
$855,783 for the completion of various projects.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE COMMISSION’S
NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

2018
Total pension liability
Service cost
Interest on total pension liability
Differences between expected and
actual experience
Changes of assumptions
Benefit payments, including
refunds of employee contributions

$

Net change in total pension liability
Total pension liability - beginning
Total pension liability - ending (a)
Plan fiduciary net position
Contributions - employer
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds
of employee contributions
Administrative expenses

$

$

Net change in plan fiduciary net position

290,707
452,681

2017
$

293,353
399,112

2016
$

245,679
335,690

2015
$

244,062
298,149

227,855
81,397

96,885
-

331,132
-

20,708
(24,046)

(83,071)

(113,206)

(75,099)

(33,844)

969,569

676,144

837,402

505,029

5,882,583
6,852,152

466,145
559,750

$

$

5,206,439
5,882,583

387,759
341,613

$

$

4,369,037
5,206,439

365,501
18,511

$

$

3,864,008
4,369,037

381,081
246,730

(83,071)
(25,025)

(113,206)
(12,450)

(75,099)
(12,226)

(33,844)
(9,731)

917,799

603,716

296,687

584,236

Plan fiduciary net position - beginning
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b)

$

3,559,862
4,477,661

$

2,956,146
3,559,862

$

2,659,459
2,956,146

$

2,075,223
2,659,459

Commission's net pension liability ending (a) - (b)

$

2,374,491

$

2,322,721

$

2,250,293

$

1,709,578

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total pension liability
Covered-employee payroll
Commission's net pension liability as a
percentage of covered-employee payroll

65.35%
$

6,156,245

38.57%

Notes to the Schedule
The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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60.52%
$

5,362,432

43.31%

56.78%
$

5,174,265

43.49%

60.87%
$

4,621,888

36.99%

BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULES OF REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF COMMISSION CONTRIBUTIONS

2018
Actuarially determined contribution

$

2017

493,084

Contributions in relation to the
actuarially determined contribution

$

493,084

2016

457,166

$

457,166

2015

364,624

$

364,624

365,794
365,794

Contribution deficiency (excess)

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

Covered-employee payroll

$

6,156,245

$

5,362,432

$

5,174,265

$

4,621,888

Contributions as a percentage of
covered-employee payroll

8.01%

8.53%

7.05%

7.91%

Notes to the Schedule
Valuation Date

January 1, 2017

Actuarial Cost Method

Projected Unit Credit

Amortization Method

Closed level dollar for remaining unfunded liability

Remaining Amortization Period

Remaining amortization period varies for the bases, with a net
effective amortization period of 16 years.

Asset Valuation Method

Sum of actuarial value at beginning of year and the cash flow during the year
plus the assumed investment return, adjusted by 10% of the amount that the
value exceeds or is less than the market value at end of year. The actuarial
value is adjusted, if necessary, to be within 20% of market value.

Actuarial Assumptions:
Net Investment Rate of Return
Projected Salary Increases
Cost of Living Adjustments

7.50%
2.75% plus service based merit increases
0.00%

The schedule will present 10 years of information once it is accumulated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
To the Board of Commissioners of the
Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer Commission
Brunswick, Georgia
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of the Brunswick-Glynn County Joint Water & Sewer
Commission (the “Commission”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Commission’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report
thereon dated November 16, 2018.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Commission’s internal control over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for
the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Commission’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. Given
these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material
weaknesses. We did identify a certain deficiency in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and responses that we consider to be a significant deficiency.
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Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Commission’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial
statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Commission’s Response to the Finding
The Commission’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and responses. The Commission’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose.

Macon, Georgia
November 16, 2018
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION I
SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS
Financial Statements
Type of auditor’s report issued

Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses identified?

Yes

Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weaknesses?

X

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

X No

Yes
Yes

None Reported
X

No

Federal Awards
Not applicable as a single audit was not performed for the year ended June 30, 2018, due to the Commission not
expending $750,000 or more of federal funds.
SECTION II
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
2018 - 001. Segregation of Duties
Criteria: Internal controls should be in place, which provide reasonable assurance that an individual cannot
misappropriate funds without such actions being detected during the normal course of business.
Condition: Appropriate segregation of duties does not exist among cash management, disbursements, and
the posting of journal entries. The Chief Financial Officer has unrestricted override access to all financial
accounting system functions, including the simultaneous proposal and approval of general ledger entries, the
cash disbursement cycle, and bank reconciliations.
Context: Several instances of overlapping duties were noted during interviews regarding internal control
procedures.
Effect: Failure to properly segregate duties among cash management, disbursements, and the posting of
journal entries can lead to misappropriation of funds that is not detected during the normal course of business.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION II
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS AND RESPONSES (CONTINUED)
2018 - 001. Segregation of Duties (Continued)
Recommendation: The duties of the finance department staff, including cash management, disbursements,
and the posting of journal entries, should be segregated among employees.
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Action: The Commission concurs with the finding. We
are in the process of implementing new and reviewing existing controls to properly segregate duties among
finance department staff to provide reasonable assurance that an individual cannot misappropriate funds
without being detected during the normal course of business. In September 2018, a vacancy in the position
of Sr. Financial Analyst was filled with an accounting professional. This individual will be utilized to facilitate
appropriate separation of duties.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION III
FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Not applicable.
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BRUNSWICK-GLYNN COUNTY JOINT
WATER & SEWER COMMISSION
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2017 - 001. Segregation of Duties
Criteria: Internal controls should be in place, which provide reasonable assurance that an individual cannot
misappropriate funds without such actions being detected during the normal course of business.
Condition: Appropriate segregation of duties does not exist among cash management, disbursements, and
the posting of journal entries. The Chief Financial Officer has unrestricted override access to all financial
accounting system functions, including the simultaneous proposal and approval of general ledger entries, the
cash disbursement cycle, and bank reconciliations.
Auditee Response/Status: Unresolved. See current year finding number 2018 - 001.
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